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Who we are

Ashmore Group is a leading specialist emerging
markets fund manager with long experience

of investment outperformance through active
management across six core investment themes:
external debt, local currency, special situations,
equity, corporate high yield and multi-strategy.

Our markets

Ashmore manages US$24.9 billion in 59 accounts
for a broad range of predominantly institutional
investors, from both developed world and emerging
markets sources of capital.

Financial highlights

£44.7M 200s) 834[) (2008) 76% (2008)
£52.5m  8.34p 4%

Performance fees Final dividend per share Operating margin
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Group at a glance

We are one of the world’s leading

emerging market investment managers.

Background

First fund established 1992 within ANZ
Established as an independent company through
MBO in 1999

Listed on London Stock Exchange in October 2006,
within FTSE 250

Financial and operations

Profit before tax £159.8 million (2008: £196.2 million)

Operating margin 74 per cent (2008: 76 per cent)

Average management fee margins 107 bps

(2008: 103 bps)

AuM of US$24.9 billion at 30 June 2009

(2008: US$37.5 billion)

Six core themes below, with others in development

- External debt

- Local currency

- Special situations

- Equity

- Corporate high yield

- Multi-strategy

59 emerging markets (EM) accounts (funds),

14 managed by local subsidiaries

142 employees (2008: 93 employees)

— 55 investment professionals and 87 support staff

—101 centrally and 41 in local asset management
subsidiaries

Headquartered in the UK

— Other offices in Brazi, India, Singapore, Turkey and USA

Market position

Emerging market opportunity enhanced following
global credit erisis

Increasing allocations as emerging markets grow
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Dedicated to emerging markets.
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Performance review

“The Group’s performance
in the year has been broadly
satisfactory. The opportunity
for greater emerging market
significance, strong investment
returns and AuM growth sees
Ashmore very well positioned.”




Chairman’s statement
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The team at Ashmore has a track record
of success built over many years.

The year to 30 June 2009 was one

of unprecedented turbulence In the
global economy, which resulted in
an extreme reduction in the levels of
leverage deployed across the world
and a significant reduction of liquidity
and increased volatility throughout
world markets. As the year ended,
there were some signs of a recovery
in markets with a more stable set

of conditlons prevailing. Against

this background, Ashmore Group
{“Ashmore” or the “Group”) has had a
broadly satisfactory year, with a profit
before tax of £159.8 million (year
ended 30 June 2008; £196.2 million).

@.mmﬂmmm

Over the last year the Group has
concentrated on its core capabilities

of product innovation, asset raising/
retention, good investment performance
and excellent client service. At the same
time, it has continued to strengthen the
business through the recruitment of
additional talented individuals within the
central and local asset management
businesses and through the introduction
of enhanced core systems and operating
processes. The Chief Executive Officer's
statement and the Business review
provide further detail on these activities.

In recognition of the financiat performance,
and our confidence in the Group's
tfuture prospects, the Directors are
recommending a final dividend of

8.34 penca for the year ended 30 June
2009 which, subject to shareholder
approval, will be paid on 4 December
2009 to all shareholders who are on
the register on 6 November 2009. This
makes a total dividend of 12.0 pence
for the year {2008: 12.0 penca).

During the year ended 30 June 2009,
the following Board changes occurred.
In Septermber 2008, Jonathan Asquith
joined the Group, having been Vice
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer

at Schroders ple. Initially he was an
independent non-executive Director
and member of the audit committee.
Subsequently he has becoma Chairman
of the rermnuneration committes.
Jonathan's extensive industry
experience and knowledge have added
additionat strength to the Board and its
committee structure. At the Group's
AGM in October, Jon Moulton retired,
having been a non-executive Director
since the Group was established in
1999, | should like to thank Jon for the
very considerable contributions he made
over those 10 years. In June, the Group
announced the appointment to the
Board of Melda Donnelly, former

Chief Executive Officer of Quesnsiand
Investment Corporation and current
Deputy Chairperson of the Victoria
Funds Management Corporation.
Melda has extensive experience of the
international pension industry and of
institutional shareholder best practice.

| would like to welcome Melda to the
Board, and she has alsc become a
member of the audit committee from
which | have stepped down.

@mmuwmmh

The team at Ashmore is committed

to implementing successfully its strategy
of developing a global specialist
emerging markets business, with assets
of all classes managed both centrally
and through developing a number

of local asset management operations
in the key emerging markets.

I would like to thank all the members

of the Group for the efforts they continue
to make towards achieving our goals.
The opportuniies and challenges that
will be presented in the future will be
significant as the global economic
prospects become ever more influenced
by the smerging markets, where the
Group has a track record of success,
built over many years.

Michael Benson
Chairman
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

World events over the last year have both
emphasised and accelerated the increase
in the significance of the emerging markets.

The Group's overall financial
performance achieved in the year
ended 30 June 2009 was broadly
satisfactory within the context

of the extraordinary global market
conditions. In the first half, as a result
of significant reductions in asset
valuations and sharply increased
outflows, assets under management
(AuM) were reduced by a third and
after a further small fall in the third
quarter the final quarter saw an
increase to close at a level of
US$24.9 billion.

The opportunity presented now for
Ashmore is greater than ever as world
events over the last year have both
emphasised and accelerated the
increase in the significance of the
emerging markets within the global
economy. We continue to see
opportunities going forward across

the asset classes we operate in, and
during the last year have further improved
our operating platform to enable us to
take full advantage of these opportunities.

Assets under management and financial
performance

The opening AuM at 30 June 2008 stood
at US$37.5 bilion. Overall during the
year, net redemptions of US$7.5 billion
(H1 US$5.8 hillion, H2 WUS$1.7 billion)
and negative investment performance
of US$5.1 billion (H1 negative US$7.1
billion, H2 positive US$2.0 billion) have
resutted in final AuM of US$24.9 billion.

Whilst all investment themes have seen
net redemptions across the year, these
slowed significantly in the second half,
which also saw a tumaround in markets
and investment performance. The pace
of recovery varied by theme, with
extemal debt recovering fastest to
record a @ per cent increase in AuM

in H2, while local currency still had

net redemptions that outweighed its
positive performance during that period.
Special situations lagged the listed
equity markets, as is usual emerging
from stress events, and as we waited
for corporate and capital market activity
- the principal driver of revaluations -

to pick up. AuM in the theme remained
broadly flat in the second half of the year.
Lately thera have been some positive
signs pointing to the re-establishment

of the global IPO rmarket after an almost
complete absence of such activity in
the last year.

@&m pape 15 lor turther detalls

The Group achigved net revenug

for the year of £203.5 million {2008:
£240.0 million) a reduction of 15 per cent.
Management fees (net of distribution
costs) in Sterling terms rose marginally
to £183.2 miflion (2008: £182.0 milicn),
reflecting the fact that the reduction in
average levels of AUM was offset by

the strengthening of the US Dollar and
tha increase in management fee margin.
Total performance fees for the year were
£52.5 million (2008: £44.7 million), an
increase of 17 per cent, including the
maturity of the first Global Special
Situations Fund in July 2008, and the
August 2008 annual performance fees.
Other income was £6.4 milfion (2008:
£101 milion), the reduction occurring
as a result of reduced transaction

activity levels. Foreign exchange

losses for the full year were £38.6 million,
comprising £38.3 million realised hedging
costs related to hedging the US$-
denominated management fee income
for the period, £4.1 million unrealised
hedging loss related to the hedging

of management fees for future periods,
and a £3.8 million gain from foreign
exchange movements on the Group's
non-Sterling-denominated net assets.

After costs of £52.9 million (2008: £58.8
milion) and interest income of £8.2 million
(2008: £15.0 million) profit before tax was
£159.8 million, a decrease of 19 per cent
from the previous year. Basic eamings
per share for the year were 17.1 pence
(2008: 21.0 pence).

The impact of the credit crisks

The avents of the global credit ¢risis
have been extensively documented

over the last year. There is fittle merit in
recounting them again, rather in looking
instead at the impact felt in the emerging
markets and at our resultant opportunity
set. It is clear that the crisis did not
originate in the emerging markets but,

in a global crisis as severe as that
experienced over the last year, no
market or sector could be immune

from impact.




Ashmore’s experienced fund management team
have managed funds through crises before.
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Ashmore’s experienced fund
management team have managed
funds through significant crises before,

perhaps most notably in 1994 and 1998.

On this occasion the global scale of the
crisis was greater but the emerging

market impacts have been very different.

Unlike in the earfier crises the emerging
markets are now net creditors in global
terms and as a result there has been
relatively little increase in the default risk
in Latin America and Asia and lower
levels of contagion. The impact in those
regions has principally been cne of
collateral damage from either reducing
cross-border flows or a reduction in
export levels. In Eastem Europe there
has been a more direct impact, in part
due to the greater direct investment
from a concentration of EU countries
and institutions and also to the greater
extent to which leverage had been
employed compared to other ermerging
market regions.

Following these events the resultant
position is an opportunity in three ways.
Firstly, in a macro sense we believe that
it has accelerated the shift of economic
weight to, and the bargaining positions
of, the emerging markets. The G20
London summit saw emerging markets
deliverables dominating and inclicates
that the intemational community
recognises that emerging markets will
define globalisation in the future.

Secondly, based upon Ashmore's
experience in managing across cycles
through a number of past crises we
believe we are well positioned for strong
irvestrment returns in the future. The
investment process employed managing
a portfolio during periods of market
stress is one where the liquidity of

a portfolio is retained through the
purchase of highly liquid instruments,
whilst adding lower liquidity instruments
with high embedded value such as
special situations and comorate high
vield to provide significant alpha over
the cycle. This active management
approach is not based on market
indices and accepts short-term mark-
to-markst declines, often arising simply
as a result of wider bid-offer spreads

in distressed markets, to secure
long-term gains through the acquisition
of attractive assets which will appreciate
over the medium to long term. We have,
as expected, begun to see the start

of such outperformance, and look

to realise further upside.

Thirdly, we are confident Ashmore
remains well positioned to raise more
AUM in the future through the second
and third phases of the Group's strategic
development — the further diversification
of developed world capital sources

and themes and the mebilisation of
growing emerging markst capital pools.
Developed world capital sources have
undoubtedly besn the most affected by
the events of the last 18 months with an
extreme reduction in leverage available
resulting in an overriding reduction in the
scale of funds deploved. However, wa
are beginning to receive subscriptions
from these pools again, as investors
work out whers their capital should best

be allocated. At the same time, levels of
redemptions, which were predominantly
liquidity-driven rather than asset-
allocation-based, have reduced
dramatically from the levels we received
during the middle cf the year ended

30 June 2009. Capital allocators within
those largest emerging world sources of
capltal — central banks, govemments/
reserve managers and sovereign wealth
funds — are also seriously assessing
greater reserve dlocations to the
emerging markets and so diluting the
historic dominance of the US Dolar in
this rofe. Therefore, looking forward, the
opportunity for greater emerging market
significance, strong investment retums
and AuM growth sees Ashmore very
well positioned.

@)m page 11 for furlher details

Operational dellvery

At the core of Ashmore lies our central
investment committee whose
established investment processes
focus on the maintenance of long-term
outperformance. Periods of high market
stress drive increased volumes of

inputs to those processes, including
comespondingly greater analysis to
enable the best investment decisions

to be implemented. The investment
professionals in all themes have been
tested exdensively this yearin
successfully implementing active
investment management decisions.
Sormne of the public funds with broad
mandates not tied to benchmarks saw
short-term underperformance for part
of the year as we added iliquid assets
and subsequently as the special
situations valuations lagged more liquid
investments in the recovery phase.
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Chief Executive Officer's statement: Our investment themes

continued
Theme Theme premise Overview Assets under Management (AuM)
e
Extern a| Ashmore's longest established and * Launched 1992 Yoar ended Wmmm
d largest theme_. The qxtgmal debt « Total AuM at 30 June 2009 Sparing A 505
ebt thema comprises principally US US$14.7 billion Subscriptions 1.3
Doflar and other hard currency » 22 accounts {funds) Fladamptimg (5.8)
denqmlnated instruments, which * 5 public (Ashmore sponsored) funds E(‘,mmame yabscriprons (;'_3;
may include derivatives, investing . . . -
* AuM investad in 36 countries Closing AuM 07

in mainly sovereign bonds.

Local The local currency theme comprises  * Launched 1997 Wﬂ“”“&’:
local currency and local cumency * Total AuM at 30 June 2009 Dporag AN 75
currency denominated debt instruments, USS4.2 billion Subscriptions 14
}Nhich‘ may include der!vativas. * 13 accounts {funds) z:.dammiong e 3.1) 1
s ™Y e 3
¢ AuM invested in 30 countries Closing AuM 4.2

Special The special situations theme * Launched 1998 Tt st 0. 200

. - comprises investmentsindebl and/or  + Total AuM at 30 June 2009 Y] a5
situations cther uu:trumentsmtygcaﬂy locusing US$3.3 biion °"°“""Hs 9 A oz
on IGNS INVOING Corporate . ecamptons 0.5

distressed for controlinvestments 9 accounts {funds}) Net (raderrnnns)labw’;ﬂons( ) 0.3)

or restructuring, distressed assets * & public funds Performance (1.0}

or distressed sallers of assets, and * AuM invested in 21 countries Closing AuM 33

often with a private equity approach.

Eqmty The equity investment theme « Launched 2000 'W'““mmm
comprises public equity and * Total AuM at 30 June 2009 Sparing AaM 05
equity-related securities. The US$0.1 bilion Subscriptions 00
investments invested inbythefunds  « gaccounts (funds) Rademptions 0.4
caninclude equities, convertibles, « 5 public funds Net [redemptions}/subscriptions ((g;:
warrants and equity demvatives. + AuM invested in 18 countries Ciosing AUM [X]

corporate The corporate high yield theme * Launched 2007 """"‘”“’;::
. - comprises investments in corporate » Total AuM at 30 June 2009 o A o5
hlgh yleld dabt within emerging markets. US$0.5 bilion &mg o 01
* 2 accounts (funds) z;";"“m __0¢ =
+ 1 public fund o e el o1
* AuM invested in 21 countries Closing AuM 0.5

M ]t'- The multi-strategy funds supplement  * Launched 2003 Yaar sexied 10 Jscw 2009
1)) 1] f : USSbn
the core product rangs, investing * Total AuM at 30 June 2009 Opening AuM 38
strategy into the five core themes and any LIS$2.0 bilion Subscristions 07
new themes where appropriate. . Redamptions (1.8}
They includa Ashmore Global . 2 aot;lqumsng:MS) Net (redernptions)/subscriptions Ly
Opportunities Limited, & permanent publc funds ] Periormance ©n
capital vehicle, which listed on the * AuM invested in underlying funds Closing AuM 20
LSE on 12 December 2007. included in above themes
IEEEIIIINNNNNNNNNNNNNN______———A A S e
Other New themes developed in fine Existing Yoar wndad 30 e mﬁ
with stralegy to diversify capabities  « Fund of third-party funds Sroring Ao 50
and investor basa. * Liquidity management Subscriptions 04
In development Red s 00
P Net fradermticnsy sbscriotons oy
* Infrastructure Performance [i1+]
* Real estate Closing AuM 0.1

« Owerlay/strategies hedging
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New funds, new themes, potential clients
and strategic initiatives are underway
which we hope will bring significant
value over the coming years.

Accounts by theme Geography by theme Current markets/opportunities

* Now widsly accepted as an asset class
within fixed income.

* Dominated by long-term institutional investors.

* Strategic allocation benefits from improving
fundamentals and global importarkce of
emerging economies,

* Rapidly growing assel class.

* Best hedge against the long-term structural
decline in the US Dollar.

= Many countries are looking to develop
domaestic yield curves 10 help develap local
capital markets and stimulate growth.

* Unigue access to private investments in
emarging rmarkets which are often complex
and difficutt situations.

* Aim o create vaue through an event(s) which
transforms the Company, hence preference
for distressed for control.

* Provides investors with potentiafly high returns
and low correlations to public markets.

* Affractive, potentially high, returns
from growing and deepening emerging
equity markets,

* Index returns have seen ten-year periods
of negative returns, emphasising the benefit
of active management of country risk.

* Emerging markels corporate high yield
is a fast-growing segment of emerging
dabt markets.

+ Offers historicaly attractive risk-adjusted
eturns, and a strong alternative to
G7 corporatss.

* Anideal strategy for irvestors whao prefer
to let Ashmore make tha dynamic asset
alocation decisions across Ashmore's
investment themes.

* Early access to new asset classes as the
number of themas ncreasas, for example
real estate.

* For every asset class in the developed
world there is a potential asset class
in tha ermerging world.

* There s a strong strategic case for investing
in the emenging world across a growing
number of asset classes, particularly
at their nascent stages.
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Chief Executive Officer’s statement

continued

Our long-term institutional investor
base has a good understanding of our
approach but nevertheless a feature
of last year was a significant increase
in the time spent by our marketing and
client relationship teams in reinforcing
and enhancing this understanding.

In the area of new product launches,

the period has naturally seen somewhat
recluced levels achieved comparad

with recent periods. The second half
saw the fifth global special situations
fund launched with AuM of US$0.1 billion
and in May we launched the Global
Consolidation & Recovery Fund giving
financial institutions a way of addressing
some or all of their distressed or other
emerging market balance sheet
exposures. In addition to these public
fund launches, the period saw two new
segregated mandates funded in external
debt and corporate high yield. At the
same time we have been working hard
on future initiatives to provide our clients
with further diversification into those
asset classes where we see significant

opportunity in the next one to thres years.

&m pape 14 lor further dataily

It has been another very busy year in
the area of infrastructure projects with
the implementation of a new portfalio
management system which, in
conjunction with the fund accounting
systemn implernented last year, provides
the backbone upon which 1o execute
our long-term fund management
strategy. In addition we have deployed
new core systems in the human
resources and company secretarial
areas and implemented a new general
ledger system. In all cases these
provide us with further robust scalable
applications that can be used across
the Group.

The Group’'s local asset management
subsidiaries now operate in Brazil,
Turkey and India. At the beginning

of January we launched equity funds
managed in our Sao Paulo office
mirroring the onshore and offshore
fund structures established there last
year with the local currency funds.

All these funds have begun to see
some subscriptions following the
establishment of good opening track
records. In Turkey, having established
the local asset management business
in Istanbul following regulatory approval
in August kast year, we launched three
Ashmore mutual funds in May this year.
In indlia the period has been a busy
one for both the locally based special
situations team and our mid-market
private equity venture.

Fotlowing the acquisition of a majority
interest in Dolomite Capital, a New
York-based emerging market fund

of third-party funds manager and
independent advisar, in November we
completed the acquisition of the balance
before the year ended to enabls us

to consolidate the team with our existing
staff and grow our overall Ashmore
marketing and distribution presence

in the United States.

People and culture

Ashmore has been successiul over

the long term because we have
combined a successful operating model
with good people and a robust culture.
At the heart of the culture we believe are
two overriding principles - alignment with
our clients and alignment with our
shareholders. The performance of the
tearn at Ashmore over the year to

30 June 2009 has been one of immense
effort and significant achievement in
many areas. Nonetheless, as in past
years, the financial rewards for the

team have been reduced, mirroring the
negative absolute retums delivered by

anumber of the Group’s funds, and by
Ashmore’s shares. This demonstrates
the long-term nature of our commitment
to make returns for both our investors
and our shareholders. Our culture
doesn't change.

@bm page 35 far turthar datalls

The organisation has grown as we have
recruited a significant number of people
into the Ashmore team during the last
two years, The experiences we have
shared in the delivery of investment
performance, client management,
support and infrastructure development
over the last year have been stretching,
but nevertheless highly enjoyable and
rewarding. | would like to thank everyone
for the part they have played over

the period in providing Ashmore with
the platform to seize the significant
opportunities going forward and |

look forward to us alf getting on and
seizing them.

&)m pags 12 for further delails

Perfermance fees

Urnaudited annual performance fees for
the funds with performance years ended
31 August 2008 {including EMUP and
LCD) were £5.1 million (August 2008:
£31.0 million) which will be recognised
in the financial year ended 30 June 2010.
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At the heart of the culture we believe are two
overriding principles — alignment with our
clients and alignment with shareholders.

Qutlook statement

The outlook can be assessed from

two standpoints, the intemal perspective
of the firm and the external perspective
of the markets in which we operate. Our
outiook based on the first of these is as
positive as at any time | can remember
as the number of new opportunities,
projects and initiatives that are being
worked upon across the firm is
extensive. New funds, new themes,
potential clients and strategic initiatives
are underway which we hope will bring
significant value over the coming years.
July and August have seen net inflows
and positive investment performance,

following the trend established in
May and Juna.

As far as the prospects for emerging
market investment are concemed we
believe the reshaping of the emerging
markets’ role within the global order
has received a significant boost in the
last year, We ara also optimistic that we
are seeing investors begin to allocate
capital again and our challenge remains,
as always, to persuade them of the
compelling investment opportunities
presented in the emarging markets.
The long-term trend of an increasing
allocation from investors towards

emerging markets as these markets
make up an ever greater proportion

of world markats, whether measured

by market capitafisation in debt or
equity or through altematives ike GDP
or growth potential, continues to be very
positive far Ashmore. The largest source
of capital to manage gver the long term
remains tha capital from within the
emerging markets themselves, and we
are increasingly focused on this, gnd

on the resources required yb ac

Mark Coombs
Chief Executive Officey

Qur strategy

The Group remains fecused on its stated strategy to deliver long-term investment outperformance; generate and diversify net
management fee income through the attraction of net subscriptions across investment themes; and develop the Ashmore brand

and business model through a number of phases:

........................................... Deve|0ped world capita' =>EMinvestment - .

Phase |: Establish emerging
market asset class

Status: Largely completed

= Establish Ashmore
emerging markets
investment processes

+ Enhance understanding
of emerging markets debt
in the developed world

+ Provide access to emerging
markets, and their rapid
development opportunities

+ Develop strong performance
track record

= Increase developed world
investor allocations into
emerging markets

Phase II: Diversify developed world capital
sources and themes

Status: Underway — significant growth available

Establish new investment themes to diversify
emerging market product offerings

Develop new product structures and capabilities
Establish Ashmore as trusted allocator

Broaden and deepen developed world investor base
Deliver strong performance consistently

Phase ilI: Mobilise emerging markets capital

Status: Commenced - enormous future growth opportunities

Mobilise emerging markets capital managed offshore:

- Capital sourced initially from largest pools, i.e. central banks,
governments, reserve managers and sovereign wealth funds

Develop network of domestic asset management businesses:

- Manage domestic capital tocally
- Create strong local performance track record
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Key performance indicators: the Group’s
progress towards its strategic objectives.

Business review

The financial and operational highlights previousty described are analysed further in the following Financial and Business review,
providing a detalled account of the Group's activities and their financial impact in the period,

Key performance indicator

Definition

Year-end assets under management/
Average assets under management (AuM)

The movement between opening and closing assets under
management provides a good indication of the overall sliccess

of the business during the period, beth in terms of net subscriptions/
redemptions and investment perforrmance.

The average AuM balance during the period, along with the
average margins achieved, determina the level of management
fee revenues. The AuM and margin trends are lead indicators
for short-term profitability.

Average net management fee margins (bps)

The average net management fee margin is calculated in US Dollars,
and is assessed after management fee rebates. The average is
atfected by changes in the product and investor mix. Certain themes
attract higher gross fee levels, generally where investment return
opportunities are higher.

Operating profit margin

The operating profit margin measures total operating profits against
net revenues. Net revenues are calculated after deducting third-party
distribution costs and any rebates. Included within total operating
costs are both fixed and variable personnel expenses, and other
operating expenses.

Variable compensation {“VG")/EBVCIT

Year-end headcount

The Group's variable compensation represents the majority of the
overall personnel expenses payable, and is assessed as percentage
of profit before tax, interest, and variable compensation. The amount
includas performance-related bonuses, share-based payrments and
associated social security costs.

The Group analyses its headcount by function {investrment vs. support),
and by geography (central vs, local asset management subsidiaries).
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2008/09 achievemnents Long-term achlevements

US$$24.9 billion/US$27.7 billion

The dectne in AuM in the period reflects the difficult and volatile
market conditions, particutarty in the first half, with AuM closing at
US$24.5 bilion at 31 December 2008. Cutflows peaked at the end
of the first and through the second quarter, before slowing in the third
quarter, and May and June saw modest net inflows — reaching a
closing level of US$24.9 billion at 30 June 2009.

@bmwutnrmm-mmh

107.0 basis points (bps)

During the period average net management fee margins increased
from 103bps in 2007/08, largely driven by the timing of outflows and
the resultant AuM mix, rather than by a long-term expansion in margin
lavels. However, the maintenance of high revenue margins, reflecting
the specialist characteristics of many of the themes we manage and
the active nature of our investment process, remains our aim.

Qmwumm-rmlu

74 per cent

The Group has maintained a market-leading operating margin position.
Whilst we have remained focusad on growing our platform, we retain
a significant degree of flexibility in our cost base, restricting fixed costs
where possibla. As we have outlined previously, we do expect this

to normalise in the mid 60s over the long term.

&mmlumuhmm

14 per cent

The VCG/EBVCIT percentage was lowered in 2008/09 to 14.0 per cent
(2007/08: 18.2 per cent). This reflects the reduction in the performance
of the business, and demonstrates a strong alignment with shareholders
and fund investors, many of whom have experienced negative
absolute returns in the period.

&mmumwm

The Group's overall headcount has grown as planned in the period,
reflecting the Group's success in achieving targeted expansion of local
asset management subsidiaries, and the further diversification of our
EM capabilities managed centrally. The growth in support headcount
reflacts the Group's confidence in its strategy, preparing the infrastructure
platform for the next growth phase as market conditions improve.

&}mmllhhﬂhdmb
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Business review

continued

Ashmore Group result

The Group recorded an operating
profit before tax for the year ended

30 June 2009 of £150.6 million

(2008: £181.2 milliory), giving rise to an
operating margin of 74 per cent (2008:
76 per cent); a profit before tax of
£159.8 million (2008: £196.2 million);
and a profit after tax of £115.5 million
(2008: £141.0 million). The financial
results are analysed further below.

Assets under management and fund flows
Global market conditions during the

first half were extremely challenging,
particutarly with the aggressive falls

in global markets in the aftermath of
Lehman's fallure on 15 September 2008,
The significant fall in valuations, coupled
with the redemption of assets by clients
for liguidity reasons, impacted the
Group's assets under management.
Inflows fell away, as those clients

with liquidity held off from making EM
allocations in turbulent markets. Despite
some signs of stabilisation late on,

ali relevant indices weare down on the
opening 1 July pasition by 31 December
2008, some significantly.

AuM movements In the period

As a result, the significant majority of
the dedline in AuM during the financial
year occurred between September and
December 2008, with a decline from
US$37.5 billion at 30 June 2008 to
US$24 .5 billion by 31 December

2008, through a combination of net
redemptions (US$5.8 billion} and
adverse performance (US$7.1 billion).

The second half of the financial year
opened with further market falls, which
again undermined investor confidence
and erased some gains made in
December. Outflows continued on from
the first half, at a much reduced rate,
and these were concentrated in the
local currency funds. At the end of the
third quarter AuM had fallen a further
US$1.1 bilion to US$23.5 bilien.

Since then, AuM has stabilised,
reflecting the improvement in market
conditions. AuM rose by US$1.4 billion
in the fourth quarter to close at US$24.9
bition on 30 June 2009, US$1.9 bilton
being attributable to performance and
US$0.5 hilion to net cutflows, all of
which arose in Aprii 2009. The quarter
ended with outflows having stabilised,
and modest inflows, This resulted

in an aggregate uplift in AuM during
the second half of US$0.3 billion, being
attributable to favourable performance
of US$2.0 billion, and net outflows

of US$1.7 billion.

New funds

The year saw levels of new funds
launched reduced from earlier years

in terms of both numbers of funds

and levels of AUM raised. In the public
funds category, four funds were
launched: the Global Special Situations
Fund 5 (US$0.1 billion); the Global
Consolidation & Recovery Fund (US$0.1
billion); and two Braziian equity funds
(one onshore, and an offshora
equivalent) managed by cur Brazilian
local asset management subsidiary.
Additionally, three dual-branded

Turkish mutual funds were launched —
specialising in Turkish equities, debt,
and liquidity respectively, managed

by our Turkish local asset management
subsidiary; and two new segregated
mandates won in the period - within

the extemal debt and corporate high
yield themes. The Group also laid the
foundations in respect of a number of
other initiatives, which we expect tobe a
success in 2009/10, markets permitting.

Year endad 30 June 2009

Year ended 30 June 2008

S$bn USSbn
Opening AuM kYA 316
Gross subscriptions 3.8 1.0

Gross redemptions (11.3) (8.0)

Net (redemptions)/subscriptions {7.5) 3.0
Performance (5.1) 29
Closing AuM 249 37.5




To provide visibility around multi-strategy funds
and new initiatives, we intend to analyse AuM
by the theme by which we are mandated.
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Further analysis of AuM

Since becoming listed, AuM has been
reported on a quarterly basis for each of
the core investment thernes by external
debt, local currency, special situations,
and equity. Corporate high yield, the
most recently launched strateqy, is
included within extemal debt from
where the majority of funds invested

AuM movements by investment theme as managed

in it were drawn. This has meant that
multi-strategy funds, where we make
the asset allocation decision dynamically
between the themes, have been
incluced in the themes rather than

as an AuM category in their own right.
The information has been presented

in this format in the table below for the
financial year to 30 June 2009,

AuM at AuM at AuM at
30 June Net subs Net 31 Decernber Net subs Net 30June  Avgmgt fes
2008 {reds) paerformance 2008 reds)  performance 2009 margin
USshn USSbn Stbn UsSson USsbn Ussbn Us$bn ops
External debt 227 {3.9) (4.0 147 (0.4) 1.7 16.0 85
Local currency 8.5 (1.2) (1.9) 54 (1.5) 06 4.5 m
Special situations 55 (0.3) (0.8) 4.4 0.2 (0.3) 43 185
Equity 0.8 (0.4) 0.3) 01 - - 01 128
Total 37.5 (5.8) (7.1} 246 (1.7) 2.0 249 107
However, as the business has new initiatives as they are launched, we
developed, to provide visibility of those intend in future to provide AuM analysis
multi-strategy funds in the manner most by the principal component of the theme
refevant to their financial impact on the by which we are mandated. Accordingty,
Group’s performance, and to providean  the table below sets out the AuM
additional explicit “other” category for movernent on this basis.
AuM movements by investment theme as ¢lassified by mandate
AuM at AuM at AuM at
30 June Nt subs. Net 31 Decembar Nat subs Not 30June  Avgmgtfes
2008 {reds) performance 2008 (redts)  performance 2009 margin
ussbn ussbn US$bn USSbn ustbn usson Ussbn bps
External debt 209 4.0) (3.6) 13.3 (0.5) 19 14.7 79
Local currency 7.2 (0.5) (1.7) 50 (1.2) 0.4 4.2 1086
Special situations 46 (0.4} 0.7 35 0.1 (0.3) 33 196
Equity 0.5 (0.1) (0.3) 01 0.0 0.0 0.1 124
Corporate high yield 0.5 Qo0 (0.1) 04 0.1 0.0 0.5 183
Multi-strategy 38 (0.9) {0.7) 22 (0.2} 0.0 20 135
Other 0.0 01 0.0 01 0.0 0.0 0.1 n/m*
Total 375 (5.8) {7.1) 246 (1.7 20 24.9 107

* not meaningful at present
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Business review

continued

e —

The change in AuM reporting does

not invalidate the basis of reporting

AuM by the theme that assets are
ultimately invested in. Such analysis

will demonstrate the impact of the
allocation of the multi-strategy funds

and of cross-over investing. Cross-over
investment refers to the process whereby
funds in one investment theme, principally
external debt, are permitted to invest

a proportion of their value into individual
assets from other Ashmore themes.

The charts on this page illustrate

the impact of moving between the

“as classified by mandate” and the

“as invested” analysis as at 30 June
2009, and the previous year.




ASHMORE GROUP PLC / AR 03 / PERFORMANCE REVIEW / BUSINESS REVIEW

The profile of the Group’s AuM
remains diversified.

Investor profile —type and geography

The Group has a broad range of
investars in the funds it manages,
predominantly institutional in type

(30 June 2009: 91 per cent; 30 June
2008: 88 per cent), which includes
banks, insurers, pension providers,
corporates and government agencies.
The balance comprises @ per cent retail/
high net worth individuals (30 June
2008: 12 per cent). Ashmore does not
currently access the Retail market
directly, though sorme institutional
business, particularty via banks, is
intermediated business of this nature.

Within the institutional investor profile,
the most significant shift during the
period has been the increase in corporate
pension plans (from 16 per cent to

22 per cent) and govemnment investments
(from 15 per cent to 21 per centj as a
percentage relative to 2008. The investor
proportion attributable to banks has,

by contrast, fallen {from 16 per cent

to 10 per cent}, which is to be expected
given the liquidity concems many banks
experienced during the financial year.

The geographical profile of the Group's
investors remains diversified.
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Business review

continued

Management fee margins and

performance fees

As the Group’s AuM is predominantly
US Dollar-based, the majority of
management and performance fees are
also US Dollar-denominated. The table
betow therefore sets out AuM, net
managernent fees, and performance
fees, by theme in US Dollar — as the
best means of analysing the underlying
trend of management fees, performance
fees and margins.

For the purposes of the income
statement, these fees are converted
into Sterfing during the year at the
appropriate exchange rate. For
management fees the effective average
exchange rate during the period is
GBP1:1.62USD. This is weighted by
reference to the timing and extent of
management fees as they arose, and
compares to a GBP1:1.60 average
monthly rate for the financial year
{un-weighted). The effective average
exchange rate during the period for
performance fees was GBP1:1.84USD,
reflecting the crystallisation of the
majority of these fees in the first
quarter of the year {30 Jung 2009:
GBP1:1.60USD; 30 June 2008:
GBP1:1.99USD).

Management fee margins

The Group's policy of maintaining high
and stable management fee margins
has been continued during the period,
despite the volatility in markets and
tough operating environment for asset
managers. Across the first half average
net management fee margins actually
increased relative to 2007/08, as a
function of the AuM mix, with the timing
of outflows at different margins having
an impact, because of the size of
mandate or asset class invested in.
Howsver, this re-balanced during the
second half, such that although the
average revenue margin for 2008/09
remained 4 bps higher than the
103bps experienced during 2007/08,
average net management fee margins
for the final quarter returned {o the
2007/08 levels.

Performance fees

It is the Group’s paolicy to maintain

a good balance between those funds
where the Group is eligible to eam
performance fees and those that
generate revenues for the Group solely
through management fees. At the year
end the Group was eligible to eam
performance fees on 67 per cent of
AUM (2008: 65 per cent), and 61 per
cent of funds (2008: 60 per cent), Within
those funds that are eligible to generate
performance fees, 14 per cent were
inefigible in the year under review, either

Undertying US Dollar management and performance fees

because such {ees are eamed at the

end of the multi-year fund life or because
they are subject to rebate agreements.
Total performance fee income for the
year ended 30 June 2009 was £52.5
million {2008: £44.7 million).

Operating costs and operating margin

The Group maintains a tightly controlled
cost structure, but has invested
significantly in infrastructure in recent
periods to provide a platform for growth
without the nead for further comparable
support cost expansion. Rather, the
focus in the coming periods will be

on extending our distribution reach,

and on enhancing the Group's
irvestment capabilities where

suitable opportunities arise.

Retaining a low proportion of fixed
personnel expenses relative to variable
performance-related personnel costs
remains core to this philosophy, ensuring
employees are strongly aligned with fund
investors and shareholders, Salaries
represent the Group's biggest category
of fixed cost, so a strict base salary

cap Is enforced. For the year to 30 June
2009 fixed personnel costs increased

by £4.1 million to £11.5 million (2007/08:
£7.4 million) of total perscnnel cost of
£36.0 million {2007/08: £47.7 million).

Net manzgement Propartion Perfermance

AuM at AuM 3t s of nat fees tn Proportion of
30 Juna 2008 30 June 2009 30 Juns 2009 management foes 30 Juns 2009 performance faes

USSba usstn Us$m % us$m %
Extemnal debt 20.8 14.7 120.9 40.7 319 33.0
Local currency 7.2 4.2 58.4 19.7 28.1 29.7
Special situations 46 33 72.0 24.2 323 33.5
Equity 0.5 0.3 2.2 07 01 0R|
Corporate high yield 0.5 0.5 79 2.7 0.1 01
Multi-strategy 38 2.0 35.1 11.8 34 3.6
Other 0.0 01 0.6 0.2 0.0 0.0
Total {US$) 375 249 2971 160 96.5 100
Total (GBP) 18.8 15.1 183.2 100 52.5 100




The Group’s policy of maintaining high
and stable management fee margins

has been continued.
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Variable compensation includes
performance-related bonuses, share-
based payments and associated

social security costs. For 2008/09 this
fell to £24.5 milion, 14.0 per cent as a
percentage of earnings before variable
compensation, interest, and tax “EBVCIT,
(2007/08: £40.3 milion, 18.2 per cent),
reflecting the reduced performance of
the business and markst conditions.

As we highlighted at the time of the
Interim Results, the Group executed

a planned headcount increase during
the first half, growing from 83 to 138
employees at 31 December 2008.
Subsequently, the Group has added

a further four heads, taking the year-end
headcount to 142, of whom 41 are
employed in relatively newly established
local asset management operations.
The increased headcount has been
focused on two areas: first, improving
the Group's infrastructure; and secondly
expanding the number of investment
professionals based in overseas
jurisdictions, in keeping with the

Group's strategy of establishing local
asset management operations in
emerging economies,

The Group's investment in infrastructure
initiatives to support the development
of the business have also affected other
operating costs, which increased by
£5.8 million (52 per cent) to £16.9 million
during the period. As reported in last
year's Annual Report, an additional
£1.8 million was incurred in respect

of full-year charges on the Group's new
prermises in London and amortisation
of the deferred acquisition costs (DAC)
assoclated with the launch of AGOL

in December 2007. In addition, a further
£1.3 million of the incrernent on 2007/08
relates to enhancing information
technology capabilities across the
business; £0.8 million to legal and
professional fees, including corporate
development and due diligence
activities; and £0.8 million to higher
travel costs, reflecting the Group's
increased headcount.

As aresult, the operating profit margin
for the year ended 30 June 2009 was
74 per cent {2008: 76 per cent).

Taxatian

The vast majority of the Group's profit is
subject to UK taxation and typically the

Group has a limited number of non-tax-
deductible expenses. Consequently the
Group’s effective tax rate (27.8 per cent)
has historically tracked close to the

UK corporation tax rate (currently

28.0 per cent).

There is a £14.0 million deferred tax
asset on the Group's balance sheet
at 30 June 2009, as a result of timing
differences in the recognition of

the accounting expense and actual
tax deductions in connection with
share price appreciation on share-
based awards.

Dividend

In recognition of the financial performance
during the period, and our confidence
in the Group's future prospects, the
Directors are recommending a final
dividend of 8.34 pence per share for
the year ended 30 June 2009 which,
subject to shareholder approval, will
be paid on 4 December 2009 to all
shareholders who are on the register
on 6 November 2008.

Aninterim dividend for the six-month
period to 31 Decermber 2008 of 3.66
pence (2007: 3.66 pence) was paid
on 24 April 2009, Togsther, these
resuit in a full-year dividend of

12.0 pence (2008: 12.0 pence).
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Business review

continued

Purchase of own shares

In line with authorities granted at the
AGM in October 2008, the Company
purchased 5,368,331 shares for an
aggregate consideration of £6.9 million,
which are held in treasury.

Balance sheet management and cash flow

It is the Group's policy to rmaintain a
strong balance sheet in order to support
regulatory capital requirements, to meet
the commercial demands of current
and prospective investors, and to fulfil
the development needs across the
business. Development needs include
funding the establishment costs of local
asset management ventures, seeding
new funds and other strategic initiatives.

As at 30 June 2009, total equity
attributable to shareholders of the parent
was £308.5 million, as compared to
£271.8 million at 30 June 2008. There is
no debt on the Group’s balance sheet.

Cash

The Group's cash and cash eqguivalents
balance increased by £9.2 million in

the period to £288.4 million. The Group
continues to generate significant cash
from operations, totalling £150.9 million
in the year (year to 30 June 2008:
£195.5 milion), from which it paid the
following significant iterns: £81.9 milion
in cash dividends {2007/08: £70.1 milion);
£47.7 million of taxation (2007/08:

£46.5 million); £11.6 million for new seed
investments (2007/08: £15.1 million};
£6.9 million for Ashmore Group plc
shares held in treasury (2007/08: nil);
£3.7 million to acquire new subsidiaries
(2007/08: nil); and £2.1 milion to purchase
property, plant and equipment, largsly
M-related (2007/08: £3.5 million).

The Group's cash balances are invested
with the objective of optimising retums
within a strict framewoerk which
emphasises capital preservation,
security, liquidity and counterparty risk.
Cash is invested only in institutions with
approved credit ratings of A or better.
Typically, during the financial year,
imvestments have been in short-term
cash deposits. Based on the level

of cash balances at 30 June 2009,

a 1 per cent change in UK interest
rates would have a £2.9 million impact
on the Group's profit before tax.

Seeding

The Group supports the creation of new
business by seading new funds where
necessary. As at 30 June 2008 the
amount invested was £26.6 million (at
cost), with a market value of £32.2 milion,
and an aggregated annualised return
for 2008/08 of 13 per cent (including
foreign exchange).

Foreign exchange managemennt

The Group's long-standing policy is to
hedge up to two-thirds of the foreign
exchange exposure in connection with
its net management fee cash flows,
using a combination of forward foreign
exchange contracts and options for up
to two years forward.

The period to 30 June 2008 was
characterised by extrerne cumency
volatility, with the GBF/USD exchange
rate ranging between GBP1.00:1.43-
1.98USD. In the first half there was a
significant strengthening of the US Dollar
relative to Sterling, with the exchange
rate closing on 31 December 2008

at GBP1:1.46USD. As we set out in our
Interim Resuits, this volatility resulted in
a £41.4 million loss being recognised in
the first half in respect of the unrealised
marked-to-market of US$265 million
open forward foreign exchange contracts.
The overall foreign exchange loss for the

first hatf was £49.8 million, comprising
£54.2 milion relating to hedging activity,
partially offset by £4.4 milion of gains
on revaluation of other non-Sterling-
denominated assets and liabilities.

During the secend half US$165 million
of these contracts matured, with the
crystallised losses offsetting gains

on the translation of the US Dollar
managernent fees back into Sterling
at the prevailing rate, relative to the
budgeted rate of GBP1:2.00USD. The
weakening of the US Dollar during the
second half to close at a 30 June 2009
rate of GBP1:1.65USD contributed to
hedging-refated losses being reduced
by £11.8 million to £42.4 million, within
an overall foreign exchange loss

for the year of £38.6 million.

The level of foreign exchange hedges

in place as 30 June 2009 is US$180
rrilion. This includes the US$120 million
of forward foreign exchange contracts
in respect of 2009/10 net management
fee cash flows, and US$60 million

of aptions in respect of 2010/11 net
management fee cash flows. Thesa
have been marked-to-market at the
year-end rate of GBP1:1.65USD.

The options effectively operate as a
collar, protecting the Sterling value of
US$60 million of the Group's forecast
management fee revenue cash flows

for 2010/11 from being impacted by
currency moverments outside a range
from GBP1:1.52-1.70USD. As designated
hedges the mark-to-market movement
in the value of the options will be taken
through reserves, until such tire as they
and the associated hedged revenues
mature, so long as the hedges are
assessed as being effective, If assessed
as ineffective, the mark-to-market of

the options will be taken through the
income statement.




It is the Group’s policy to maintain

a strong balance sheet.
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Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

As we indicated last year, Ashmore

was appointed investment manager of
Ashmoaore Global Opportunities Limited
(*AGOL'), a newly incorporated publicly
listed closed-ended investment
compary, on 12 December 2007. This
vehicle raised €500 million capital, with
the purpose of investing in Ashmore's
special situations and multi-strategy
funds. During 2008, the shares of the
Company have, for the most part, traded
at a discount to the net asset value of its
balance shest, although this discount
was significantly less than that of many
of its peer group. Where this discount

is in excess of 10 per cent for 12
consecutive months, an EGM is required
to consider whether AGOL should be
wound up. Such an EGM was held

on 5 May 2009, with 80 per cent of the
voting shareholders voting against the
resolution. Should the discount continue
to exceed 10 per cent for a further

12 consecutive months, an EGM

would once again be required.

The Group holds on its balance sheet
unamortised DAC in respect of the
launch of AGOL which amounted

to £11.3 million at 30 June 2008, Any
such future vote would not result in an
escalation of the recognition of these
costs, as an early termination of the
Company triggers full recovery of the
set-up costs (including the portion
previously amortised - £2.1 million
per annum, and £3.3 million cumulative
to 30 June 2009).

Regulatory capital

As a UK listed asset management
group, Ashmore is subject to regulatory
supervision by the Financial Services
Authority (FSA) under the Prudential
Sourcebock for Banks, Building
Societies and Investment Fims.

The Group has one UK-regulated entity,
Ashmore [nvestment Management
Limited (“AIML"), on behalf of which
quarterly capital adequacy retums

are filed. AIML held surplus capital
resources relative to its requirements

at all times during the period

under review.

Further, with effect from 1 January
2007, the Group has been subject

to consolidated regulatory capital
requirements, whereby the Board is
required to assess the degree of risk
across the business, and hold sufficient
capital within the Group against them.
The Board has assessed the amount
of capital required to cover such risks
as £28.0 million. Thus, given the
considerable balance sheet resources
available to the Group, the Board is
satisfied that the Group is adeguately
capitalised to continue its operations
effectively. Further information regarding
the Group's capital adequacy status
can be found in the Group’s Intemal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
{(ICAAP) and Pillar il and disclosures,
which are avallable on our website

at www.ashmoregroup.com.
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Business review: Risk analysis

continued

Risk type/owner

Description of risk

Mitigation

Strateglc and business risks

The iisk that the medium and long-term
profitability of the Group could be adversely
impacted by the failure to identify and
implement the correct strategy, and

to react smartly to changes in the

business environment.

Detegated to:

Ashmore Group plc Board

These include:
* Along-term downtum in the

fundamental and technical
dynamics of emearging marksts,
Reputational damage to
Ashmore impacting markating
and distribution capabifities.
Loss of key stafl,

These include:

» Board's long investment management experience.

* Clearty defined Group strategy, understood throughout
the organisation and actively monitored.

« Divarsification of investment capabilities to reduce
single event/product exposure.

* Committee based investment methodology creates
a scalable business model.

* New talent targeted and incorporated into Group
processes as appropriate.

Investment risks

The risk that long-term investment
outperformance is not delivered, damaging
prospects for winning and retaining clients,
and putting average management fee
margins under pressure.

Delegated to:

Ashmaore Group Investment Committee

These include:

A downturm in investment
perfarmancs.
Inadequate due diligence
on an invastment/deal.
Lack of financing, oran
axit strategy for privately
held investments.

Thess includa:

+ Experienced Investment Committee (IC) meets
weokly ensuring consistent core investment processes
are applied,

* Dedicated emerging markels rasearch and investment
focus, with frequent country visits.

+ Compensation structure links investment professionals’
ramuneration to long-term performance of funds they
manage, and the wider Group.

* Dedicated deal teams with expertise centred around
structuring of special situations deals.

Operational risks

Risks in this category are broad in nature and
inherent in all businesses. They include the
risk that operational flaws result in business
lossas — through error or fraud, the inability
to capitalise on market opportunities,

or weaknesses in systems and controls.
Delegated to:

Ashmore Group Risk and Compliance
Committes

These include:

Inabiiity to fairly price assets.
Oversight of offshore subsidiaries.
Compliance, including monitoring
of investment breachas.

Controls around special purpose
vehicles.

Execution and process
management.

Business and systemns disruption,

These include:

* Pricing Methodology Committee (PMC) providing
oversight of prices used for valuing hard-to-price
assets, with valuations of tha most material assets
outsourced 1o independent third parties.

* Integrated control and management framework
to ensure day-to-day global operations are
managed effectively,

+ Risk and Compliance Committee meets on
a maonthly basis to consider the Group's Key
Risk Indicatars {"KRIs™).

* A disaster recovery procedure exists and is
tested regularly.

* Engagement letters or service level agreements
in place with all significant service providers.

[
These inglude:

Treasury risks

These are the risks that the management
does not appropriately mitigate balance sheet
risks or exposures which could ultimately
impact the financial performance or position
of the Group.

Delegated to:

Chief Executive Officer and

Group Finance Director

Group revenuss ane primarily

US Dolar-based, whereas resutts
are denominatad in Sterding.

The Group invests in its own funds
from time to time, expaosing it 1o
price risk, credit risk and foreign
exchange risk.

Liguidity management.

The Group is exposed to credit
risk and interest rate risk in respect
of its cash balances.

Thesa include:

* Monthty reporting of all balance sheet exposures
to the Exscutive.

+ A proportion of Group curency exposures are
hedged as a matter of policy.

* Counterparties utiised for comporate depasits
or investments are approved by the Executive.

*+ Significant corporate investments ara approved
by the Board, and all others by the Chisf
Exscutive Officar.




During the year the Group’s risk control
framework has been further enhanced
to take account of changing business

and market conditions.
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Risk

Risk is inherent in ali businesses and

is therefore present within the Group's
activities. The Group seeks to effectively
identify, monitor and manags each

of its risks and actively promotes

a risk awareness culture throughout

the organisation.

The utimate responsibility for risk
management rests with the Board.
However, from a practical perspective
some of this activity is delegated.

The key risks, their mitigants, and their
delegated owners are set out on the
facing page for each of the four risk
categories that Ashrmore considers
most important: strategic and business,
investrment, operational, and treasury —
with reputational risk being a common
characteristic across all four categories.

During the year the Group's risk
control framework has been enhanced
to take account of changing business
and market conditions. There has
been specific focus on the further
development of the Group Risk Matrix,
which seeks to Identify the key risks to
the Group, as well as current mitigants
and forward-looking action plans.

Risk management and control

Risk management and control is one
elernent of the Group’s overall system
of intemal controls within its corporate
govemnance framework - incorporating
Risk, Compliance and, with effect from
July 2009, a newty formed Intemal
Audit function. Further details of the
Group’s internal control enviroriment
are described in the Comorate
govemnance report on pages 30 to 37.

Graeme Dell
Group Finance Director
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Governance

“The Group has undertaken
a number of initiatives during
the year to further strengthen
the governance framework.”




Board of Directors
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The Board has long investment
management experience.

The Hon. Michael Benson

Non-executive Chairman {Age 66}

Michae! was appointed to the Board

as non-executive Chairman on 3 July
2006. He is Chaimrman of the Company's
norminations committee. Michael began
his caresr in the City in 1963 and,

after a series of senior positions in the
investment management industry, was,
from 2002 to March 2005, Chairman

of Invesco and Vice Chairman of
Amvescap ple. Prior to that he was
CEQO of Invesco Global (1887-2002).
Michae! is a non-executive director

of Border Asset Management Limited,
is a Trustee of the North Yorkshire
Community Foundation and is director
of the York Minster Fund. N,R

Mark Coombs

Chief Executive Officer {Age 49)

Mark Coombs was appointed a Director
on the incorporation of the Company in
December 1998, and has served as its
Chief Executive Officer since then. He
held a number of positions at Australia
and New Zealand Banking Group {(ANZ)
and led Ashmore’s buyout from ANZ

in early 1999. He is Co-Chair of EMTA,
the trade association for emerging
marksts, having been on the Board
since 1983. Mark has an MA in Law
from Cambridge University.

Key to membership of committees
A Audit

N Nominations

R Remuneration

Graeme Dell

Group Finance Director {Age 43)

Graeme Dell was appointed {o the
Board as Group Finance Director

in Decermnber 2007. Pricr to joining
Ashmore Grasme was Group Finance
Director of Evolution Group plc from
2001 to 2007, where he had group-wide
responsibility for finance, operations,
technology, compliance, risk and HR
which included playing a significant role
in the foundation and development of
Evolution’s Chinesas securities business.
Graeme previously worked for Deutsche
Bank and Goldman Sachs in a range
of business management, finance

and operations roles both in Europe
and in Asia Pacific. Graeme qualified
as a chartered accountant with
Coopers & Lybrand and is a graduate
of Hertford College, Oxford University.

Nick Land

Senior Independent non-executive Director (Age 61}
Nick Land was appointed to the Board
as Senior Independent non-executive
Director and Chairman of the audit
committes on 3 July 2006. He is a
qualified accountant and was a partner
of Emst & Young LLP from 1978

to June 2006 and its Chairman

from 1995 to June 2006. Nickis a
non-executive director of Royal Dutch
Shell plc, BBA Aviation ple, Aliance
Boots GmbH and Viodafone Group ple.
He is Chairman of the Practice Advisory
Board of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales,

a mermber of the Finance and Audit
Committees of the National Gallery

and is Chairman of the Board of
Trustess of Farnham Castle. A,N,R

Jonathan Asquith

Non-executive Director {Age 52)

Jonathan Asquith joined the Board on

1 September 2008 and is Chairman of
the remuneration committee. He was
formery Vice Chairman of Schroders plc
and held the position of Chief Financial
Officer between 2002 and 2007. During
his time at Schroders he also had
responsibility within the investment
function for fixed incorme, emerging
market debt, commodities and property
and oversaw their investment capital
and private equity interasts. Prior to that
he worked for Morgan Grenfell and was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer of
Deutscha Morgan Grenfell in 1985 and
Chief Operating Cfficer in 1997, In 2001
he joined Barclays Private Bank, where
he was head of UK private banking

until his move to Schroders in 2002.

He is also a non-executive director

of AXA UK PLC. A,N,R

Melda Donnelly

Non-executive Director (Age 59)

Melda Donnelly joined the Ashmore
Group plc Board as a non-executive
Director in July 2009, and is also a
member of the audit committee. Melda
is an Australian citizen and a Chartered
Accountant. She is the Founder and
Chairperson of the Centre for Investor
Education. Current directorships include
Chalrperson of Hochma Development
Fund Pty Ltd and Deputy Chairperson
of Victarian Funds Management
Corporation. Ms Donnelly's past
investment experience includes being
CEO of Queensiand Investment
Comoration, Deputy Managing Director
of ANZ Funds Management and
Managing Director of ANZ Trustees.
She is currently a member of the
Advisory Committee of the Oxford
University Centre for Ageing. A
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their Annual Report
and financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2009. The Company,
formerly registered as a private company
and named Ashmore Group Limited, was
re-registered as a public limited company
on 3 October 2008, changing its name
on that date to Ashmore Group plc. The
Company was admitted to the Cfficial
List of the London Stock Exchange
{Admission) on 17 Octeber 2006.

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS).

Principal activity and business review

The principal activity of the Group is the
provision of investment management
services. Tha Company is required to
set out in this report a fair review of the
business of the Group during the
financial year ended 30 June 2009 and
of the position of the Group at the end
of that financial year and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group {referred to as the
Business review). The information that
fulfils the requirements of the Business
review can be found in the Financial
highlights on the inside front cover,
Group at a glance on page 2, the Chisf
Executive Officer's statement on pages
6 to 11, the Business review on pages
12 to 23 and the Corporate governance
report on pages 30 to 37.

The principal risks facing the business
are detailed in the Business review on
pages 22 to 23 and in the Corporate
govemance statement, internal contral,
on pages 34 and 35.

Results and dividends

The results of the Group for the year
are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 48.

The Directors recommend a final
dividend of 8.34 pence per share which,
together with the interim dividend of
3.66 pence per share (2008: 3.66 pence)
already declared, makes a total for the

year ended 30 June 2003 of 12.0 pence
per share (2008: 12.0 pence). Details of
the interim dividend payment are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Subject to approval at the Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend
will ba paid on 4 December 2009

to shareholders on the register on

6 November 2009 {ex-dividend date
being 4 November 2009).

Related party transactions

Detalls of related party transactions
are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Post-balance sheet events

As set out in note 26 to the financial
statements there were no post-balance
sheet events.

Directors

The members of the Board together with
hiographical details are shown on page
25. Michael Benson, Mark Coombs,
Graeme Dell and Nick Land served as
Directors throughout the year. Jonathan
Asquith and Melda Donnelly were
appointed to the Board on 1 September
2008 and 1 July 2009 respectively and
Jon Moulton retired from the Board on
30 October 2008.

Details of the service contracts of
the current Directors are shown in
the Rernuneration report on page 40.

The Company’s Articles require the
newly appointed Director Melda Donnelly
to retire from office at the first Annual
General Meeting following her
appointment and to seek re-election.
There are no Directors subject to
retirement by rotation.

Details of the constitution and powers

of the Board and its committees are

set out in the Corporate governance
report on pages 30 to 37. The Corporate
governance report alse summarises

the Company's rnules conceming
appointment and replacement

of directors.

Directors’ conflicts of interests

Since October 2008, the Companies

Act 2006 has imposed upon directors a
new statutory duty to avoid unauthorisad
conflicts of interest with the Company.
As permitted by the Act, at last year's
AGM, the Company adopted revisions
to its Articles of Association which
enabled Directors to approve conflicts

of interest and which also included

other conflict of interest provisions, The
Company has implemented processes
to identify potential and actual conflicts
of interest. Such conflicts are then
considered for approval by the Board,
subject, where necessary, to appropriate
condiions.

Directors’ share interests

The interests of Directors in the
Company's shares and in options over
the Company’s shares are shown on
page 45 within the Remuneration report.

Significant agreements with provisions
applicable to a change In control of

the Company

Save as described there are no
agreements in place applicable to

a change in control of the Company.

Resolution 10 in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting will seek approval
from shareholders to a waiver of the
provisions of Rule 9 of the Takeover
Code in respect to the obligation that
could arise for Mark Coombs to make
amandatory offer for the Company in
the event that the Company exercises
the authority to make market purchases
of its own shares. Further details

are contained in the separate Notice
of AGM.

Restrictions on transfer of shares

Employess of the Company who held
ordinary shares in the Company or

who held options in respect of ordinary
shares at the time of Admission are,
subject to certain exceptions, restricted
by lock-in amangements from seliing,
pledging or otherwise disposing of their
holding of or options in respect of such
shares at the time immediately following




The Group purchased 5,368,331 shares for
consideration of £6.9 million, held in treasury.
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Admission (“Lock-in Shares”). The
restriction is lifted in respect of one-
third of the relevant person’s holding
of Lock-in Shares on the date of
publication of each of the full-year
results of the Company in 2007, 2008
and 2009.

Dealings in the Company's ordinary
shares by persons discharging
managerial responsibilities, employees
of the Company and, in each case,
their connected persons, are subject
to the Group's Dealing Code which
adopts the Model Cods of the Listing
Rules contained in the Financial
Services Authority's Handbook.

Certain restrictions, customary for
a listed company, apply to transfers
of shares in the Company.

The Board may, in its absolute discretion,
decline to register any transfer of a share
which is not fully paid or where there

are more than four joint holders.

In the case of certificated shares,
registration of a transfer may also be
refused where (i) the instrument of
transfer is not duly stamped (unless
axempt from stamping); (i) insufficient
evidence of titls is produced in respect
of a transfer; and (iii} the transferor has
been served with a restriction notice

Substantial shareholdings

{as defined in the Articles) after failure to
provide the Company with inforrmation
conceming interests in those shares
required to be provided under the
Companies Acts, unless the transfer
is shown to the Board to be pursuarnit
to an arm's length sale. Registration
of a transfer of shares may be refused
in the case of uncertificated shares

in the circumstances set out in the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations
{as defined in the Articles).

Substantial shareholdings

The Company has been notified of the
following significant interests {over 3 per
cent) in accordance with the FSA's
Disclosure and Transparency Rules,
{other than those of the Directors which
are disclosed separately on page 45),

in the Company's ordinary shares

of 0.01 pence each as set out in the
table below.

Share capital

The Company has a single class

of share capital which is divided into
ordinary shares of 0.01 pence, each

of which rank pari passu in respect

of participation and voting rights. The
shares are in registered form. The issued
share capital of the Company at 30 June
2009 is 708,925,000 shares in issue
{excluding 5,368,331 shares held

in Treasury).

Details of structure of and changes
in share capital are set out in note 17
to the financial statements.

Restrictions on voting rights

A member shall not be entitled to vole
at any general mesting or class meeting
in respect of any share held by him if
any call or other sum then payable by
him in respect of that share remains
unpaid or if a member has been served
with a restriction notice (as defined in
the Articles) after failure to provide the
Company with inforrmation concerming
interests in those shares required o be
provided under the Companies Acts.
Votes may be exercised in person or by
proxy. The Articles currently provide a
deadiline for submission of proxy forms
of 48 hours before the meeting.

Purchase of own shares

The Company is, until the date of the
next Annual General Meeting, generally
and unconditionally authorised to buy
back up to 70,882,500 of its own issued
shares. In the year under review the
Company purchased a total of 5,368,331
shares for Treasury at an average price
of 129 pence per share. The Company
is seeking a renewal of this authority

at the 2009 Annual General Mesting.

Humber of Number of
shares as st Numbar of Percentags shares as at Nurnber of Percentage

30 June 2009 options Interests 14 September 2009 optlons Intsrests
Jerome Paul Booth 43,247,733 3,500,000 6.64 43,247,733 3,500,000 6.64
Lone Pine Capital LCC
and Stephen F Mandel Jr 43,710,160 - 6.21 34,840,833 - 4.45
FMR LLC 34,411,630 - 4.89 34,411,630 - 4.89
Carey Pensions and Benefits Limited
as Trustee of the Ashmore 2004
Employee Benefit Trust 34,283,185 - 4.87 34,293,185 - 4.87
Jon Moulton 30,511,700 - 4,48 30,511,700 - 448
Seumas Dawes 21,440,000 - 3.05 21,440,000 - 305

Note

In addition to the interests in the Company’s ordinary shares refarrad to above, each Director and senior manager who Is an employee of the Group has
an interest in the Company’s ordinary shares held by Carey Pensions and Benefits Limited under the terms of the Ashmare 2004 Employee Banafit Trust.
Percentage Interests are basad upon 703,556,669 shares in issue {excluding 5,368,331 shares held in Treasury).
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Directors’ report

continued

Power to issue and allot shares

The Directors are generalty and
unconditionalty authorised 1o allot
unissusd shares in the Company
up to a maximum neminal amount
of £19,107.50.

A further authority has been granted
to the Directors to allot the Company's
shares for cash, up to a maximum
nominal amount of £3,544.62, without
regard to the pre-emption provisions
of the Companiaes Acts. No such shares
have been issued or allotted under
these authorities, nor is there any
current intention to do so, other than
to satisfy outstanding obligations
under the employee share schemes
where necessary.

These autherities are valid until the

date of the next Annual General Meeting.

A resolution for the renewal of such
authorities will be proposed at the
2009 Annual General Maeting.

Amendment of Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Articles of the
Company rmay be made in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies
Acts by way of a special resolution

of the Company's shareholders.

The Notice of AGM contains a
resolution recommending a number
of amendments to the Articles to bring
themn into line with recent changes

in the law and best practice.

Employees

Detalls of the Company’s employment
practices {inchuding the employment
of disabled persons) can be found in
the Corporate governance report on
page 37.

Carey Pensions and Benefits Limited as
trustee of the Ashmore 2004 Employse
Benefit Trust {the EBT) has discretion
as to the exercise of voting rights over
shares which it holds in respect of
employee share options that have not

vosted and other restricted share awards.

The current armrangement is that the
EBT considers the Company's

recommendation(s} before voting

such shares at a general meeting

of the Company, subject to an overriding
duty to act in the interests of the EBT.

Corporate governance

The Company is govemed according

to the applicable provisions of company
law and by the Company's Articles.

As a listed company, the Company must
also comply with the Listing Rutes and
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules
issued by the United Kingdom Listing
Authority {UKLA), Listed companies

are expected to comply as far as
possible with the Financial Reporting
Council's Combined Code on Corporate
Govermnance, and to state how its
principles have been applied. A report
on corporate governance and
compliance with the provisions of the
Combined Code is set out on pages
3010 37.

Charitable and political contributions
During the year, the Group made
charitable donations of €nil {2008:
£30,000). Note 24 to the financial
statements refers to charitable donations
that will be made in the year to June
2010. The work of the Ashmore
Foundation is described further below
in the corporate social responsibility
section of this report. It is the Group's
policy not to make contributions for
political purposes.

Creditor payment policy

The Group's policy and practice in

the UK is to follow its suppliers’ terms
of payment and to make payment in
accordance with those terms subject to
receipt of satisfactory invoicing. Unless
otherwise agreed payments to craditors
are made within 30 days of receipt of
an invoice. At 30 June 2009, the amount
owed to the Group's trade creditors

in the UK represented approximately
30 days' average purchases from
suppliers (2008: 30 days).

Auditors and the disclosure of information

1o auditors

The Directors who held office at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report
confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Cornpany's
auditors are unaware, and each Director
has taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as directors to maks
themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are awars of

that information.

Resolutions will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting to reappoint
KPMG Audit Pic as auditors and to
authorise the Directors to agree their
remuneration. Note 4 to the financial
statements sets out details of the
auditors’ remuneration.

2009 Annual General Meeting

The 2009 Annual General Meeting

of the Company wil be held at 12,00
noon on Thursday 22 October 2008

at Kingsway Hall, 66 Great Queen
Street, London WC2B 5BX. Details of
the resolutions to be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting are given in the
separate circular and notice of meeting.

Going concern

The Company and Group have
considerable financial resources

and the Directors believe that both are
well placed to manage their business
risks successfully. Further information
regarding the Group's business
activities, together with the factors
likely to affect its future development,
performance and position is set out
onpages 12 to 23.




The AGM will be held on 29 October 2009.
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After making enquiries, the Directors
are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to
continue to operate for the foreseeable
future and confirm that the Company
and the Group are going concems.
For this reason they continue to adopt
the going concem basis in preparing
these financial staternents.

Statement of Directors’

Companies Act 2006

This Directors' report on pages 26 to

29 inclusive has been drawn up and
presented in accordance with and

in reliance on English company law

and the liabilities of the Directors in
connection with that report shall be
subiject to the limitations and restrictions
provided by such law.

responsibilities

References in this Directors’ report to the
Financial highlights, the Business review,
the Corporate govemance report and
the Remuneration report are deemed

to be included by reference in this
Directors’ report.

Approved by the Board and signed on
its behalf by

Michael Perman
Company Secretary ,

14 September 200

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Annual Report, the
Remuneration report and the financial
statements In accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

UK company law requires the Directors
to prepare financial statements for each
financial year.

Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Company and the Group
financial statements in accordance
with IFRS.

In accordance with the FSA's Disclosure
and Transparency Rules (DTR 4.1.12)
the Directors confirm to the best of their
knowledge that:

(a) the financial statements have

been prepared in accordance with the
applicable set of accounting standards,
and give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position

and profit or loss of the Company

and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole; and

(b} the Business review includes

a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with

a description of the principal risks

and uncertainties that they face.

In preparing those financial statements,

the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies
and then apply thermn consistently;

« make judgements and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

« state that the financial statements
comply with IFRS as adopted by
the EU; and

« prepare the financial statements
on the going concem basis, unless
it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company and the Group wil
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company

and the Group and to enable them

to ensure that the financial statements
and the Remuneration report comply
with the Companies Acts and, as
regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They are
also rasponsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for
the maintenance and integrity of the
Company’s website. Legislation in
the United Kingdom govemning the
preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions,

Michael Benson
Chairman

14 Septembsg
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Corporate governance report

Section 1 of the June 2006 Financial
Reporting Council (FRC} Combined
Code on Corporate Govemance (“the
2006 Code”) applies to listed companies
with reporting years beginning on or
after 1 November 2008. The Cormpany
has adopted the principles of the 2006
Code since its admission to listing

on the London Stock Exchange

on 17 October 2006 (“Admission”).

The Company has been in compliance
with the 2006 Code since that date,
except where the Directors consider
that in particular limited circumstances
departure is justified. Such departures
are fully explained below.

This report describes the Company's
corporate govemance arrangements,
explaining how it has applied the
principles of the 2006 Code.

Directors

The Board of Directors comprises

two executive Directors and four
non-executive Directors. The two
executive Directors are Mark Coombs,
the Chief Executive Officer, and Graeme
Dell, the Group Finance Director. The
non-executive Directors are Michael
Benson, Chairman, Nick Land, Senior
Independent Director, Jonathan Asquith
and Melda Donnely.

Michael Bengon, Mark Coombs,
Graeme Dell and Nick Land served

as Directors throughout the year.
Jonathan Asquith joined the Board

on 1 Septernber 2008 as a non-
executive Director and Melda Donnelly
joined the Board on 1 July 2009,

also as a non-executive Director.

The Board has a schedule of matters

specifically reserved to it for decision

and approval, which include but are

not limited to:

« the Group's long-terrn commercial
oblectives and strategy;

« major acquisitions, disposals and
investments;

« the Group's annual and interim reports
and financial statements;

« interim dividend and recommendation
of final dividend,

« annual budgets and forecast updates;

« significant capital expenditure; and

« gffactiveness of internal controls.

The roles of the Chaimnan and Chief
Executive Officer are separate, clearly
defined and have been approved by the
Board. The Chairman is responsible for
the effective conduct of the Board, while
the Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for execution of strategy and for the
day-to-day management of the Group.

In considering non-execulive director
independence, the Board has taken into
consideration the guidance provided by
the 2006 Code. The Board considers
Michael Benson, Nick Land, Jonathan
Asquith and Melda Donnelly to be
independent. Nick Land is the Senior
Independent Director.

During the year under review the

Group did not fully comply with the
2006 Code requirement that at least

half of the Board are independent
directors (excluding the Chairman) until
the appointment of Jonathan Asquith

on 1 September 2008 and retirement

of Jon Moulton on 30 October 2008,
During the year the Board also instigated
a farmal search process with the
objective of making an additional
appointment of an independent director
with relevant experience in order to bring
the Company into compliance with other
aspects of the Code ( as described
further below), which has resulted in

the appointment of Melda Donnelly

on 1 July 2009,

Biographical details of the Directors are
given on page 25.

During the year under review the
Board met six times to review financial
performance and strategy and to follow

the formal schedule of matters reserved
for its decision. Comprehensive Board
papers, comprising an agenda and
formal reports and briefing papers, are
sent to Directors in advance of each
meeting. Throughout their period in
office, Directors are continually updated
by means of written and verbal reports
from senior executives and extemal
advisors an the Group's business,

and the competitive and regulatory
environments in which it operates, as
waell as on legal, corporate govemance,
comorate social responsibility and other
relevant matters.

In addition to its formal business, the
Board received a number of briefings
and presentations from executive
management during the year covering
a wide range of topics across the
range of the Group’s business. Al
Directors have access to independent
professional advice, if required, at the
Company's expense as well as to the
advice and services of the Company
Secretary. New directors appointed to
the Board will receive advice as to the
legal and other duties and obligations
arising from the role of a director of a
UK listed company within a full, formal
and tailored induction programme. The
Company Secretary, under the direction
of the Chairman, is responsible for
maintaining an adequate continuing
education programmes, reminding the
Directors of their duties and obligations
ona regular basis, ensuring good
information flows between the Board,
its committees and management and
assisting with Directors’ continuing
professional development needs.

The Company’s nominations committes
considers the appointment and
replacement of directors subject to the
ruies set out in the Articles, a summary
of which is set out below.




The Board comprises two executive Directors

and four non-executive Directors.
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Under the Articles, the minimum
number of directors shall be two and
the maximum shall be nine. Directors
may be appointed by the Company

by ordinary resclution or by the Board.
A director appointed by the Board must
offer themself for slection at the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company
following their appointment but they are
not taken into account in determining the
directors or the number of directors who
are to retire by rotation at that rmeeting.
The directors to retire by rotation must
be those who held office at the time:

of the two preceding Annual General
Meetings and did not retire at either

of themn or if they have held office with
the Company for a continuous period
of nine years or more at the date of

the Annual Gereral Meeting. The office
of director shall be vacated in other
circumstances, including where {j) that
director resigns or is asked to resign;

i} they are or have been suffering from
mental il health; {ii) they are absent
without permission of the Board from
meetings of the Board for six
consecutive months; (iv) they become
bankrupt or compounds with their
creditors generally; or {v) they are
prohibited by law from being a director.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company's memorandum
of association, the Articles, the
Companies Acts and any directions
given by the Company by special
resolution, the business of the Company
is managed by the Board, who may
exercise all powers of the Company,
whether relating to the management

of the business of the Company or not.

Annual performance evaluation

The Board has established a formal
process, led by the Chairman and
assisted by the Company Secretary, for
the annual evaluation of the performance
of the Board, its appointed committees
and each Director, to ensure that they
continue to act effectively and efficiently
and to fulfil their respective duties, and
to identify any training requirements.

In doing so the Board has concluded
that both the Board and its committees
are functioning effectively.

Meetings were held between the
Chairman and each individual Director

in which issues and developments

over the year wers discussed and
performance was considered by
referenca to the objectives of the Board
and its committees. The responses
were collated by the Company Secretary
and the results and issues raised were
subsequently discussed by the Board.

Board and committee attendance

The table below sets out the number

of pre-scheduled meetings of the Board
and its committees and individual
attendance by the Directors.

Board committees

The Board has appointed audit,
remuneration and nominations
committess to assist in the execution
of its duties.

All of these committees operats within
written terms of reference, which are
reviewed annually and were updated
by the Board in September 2009.

The chairman of each committee
reports regularly to the Board.

Each of the committees is authorised,
at the Company's expense, to obtain
external legal or other professional
advice to assist in carrying out its duties.
Only the members of each committee
are entitled to attend its meetings but
others, such as senior management
and external advisors, may be invited

to attend as appropriate.

Cument membership of the committees
is shown in the relevant sections below.
The composition of thesa committees
is reviewed annually, taking into
consideration the recommendations

of the nominations committee.

The Board also evaluated the
Chairman’s performance.
Board and committee attendance
Nominations Audit Remuneration
Board committes commitise commlttes
Total number of meetings between
1 July 2008 and 30 June 2009 6 2 3 1
Michael Benson 100% 100% 100% 100%
Mark Coombs 100% - - -
Graeme Dell 100% - - -
Nick Land 100% 100% 100% 100%
Jon Moulton 100% 100% 100% 100%
Jonathan Asquith 100% 100% 100% 100%
Notss

1, Jon Moulton ratired from the Board on 30 October 2008 and attendance is calculated up to this date.

2. Jonathan Asquith was appointed to the Board on 1 September 2009 and attendance Is calcutated from this date.
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Corporate governance report

continued

Audit committee

During the year under review the audit
committee comprised the following
non-executive Directors and was not
fully compliant with the Combined
Code as Jon Moulton was not an
independent director:

Nick Land (Chairman}

Michasl Benson

Jon Mouiton (retired 30 October 2008)
Jonathan Asquith

(appointed 1 September 2008).

Following the appointment of Melda
Donnelly to the Board on 1 Juty 2009,
Michael Benson has stepped down

as a member. The audit committee
comprises the following non-executive
Directors and is now fully compliant
with the requirements of the Combined
Code that the committee should
consist of at least three independent
non-executive directors:

Nick Land (Chairman)
Jonathan Asquith
Melda Donnelly.

The Board is satisfied that for the year
under review and thereafter Nick Land,
Jon Moulion and Jonathan Asquith
had and have recent and relovant
commercial and financial knowledge
and experience to satisfy the provisions
of the 2006 Code. Nick Land, Jon
Mouiton and Melda Donnslly are
chartered accountants and Jonathan
Asquith has previously served as

Chief Financial Officer of Schroders plc
and Deutsche Morgan Grentell.

A report on the activities of the audit
committes is set out on page 38, The
terms of reference for the committee
take into account the requirernents of
the Combined Code 2006 and are
available for inspection at the registered
office and at the Annual General Meeting
and can also be found on the Compary
website at www.ashmoregroup.com.

The terms of reference for the

committee include:

= monitoring the integrity of the financiat
statements of the Company, any
formal announcements relating to
the Company's financial performance
and any significant financial issues
and judgements contained in them;

« reviewing the Group's draft annual
financial statements and Interim
Results statement prior to discussion
and approval by the Board and
reviewing the extermal auditors’
detailed reports thereon;

« reviewing the extemal auditors’ plan
for the audit of the Group's financial
statements, receiving and reviewing
confirmations of auditor independence
and approving the terms of
engagement and proposed fees
for the audit;

« making recommendations to the

Board for a resolution to be put {o

shareholders to approve the re-

appointment of the external auditors;
reviewing the level and amount of
extemnal auditor non-audit services;

= reviewing management's annual
report on the Group’s system of
intermal control and its effectiveness,
reporting to the Board on the results
of this review and receiving updates
on key risk controls; and

» reviewing the commiittee's terms
of reference, carmying out an annual
performance evaluation exercise
and noting the satisfactory operation
of the committee.

The committes has requested and
received reports from management
to enable it to fulfil its duties under its
terms of reference.

The audit comrittee also has
responsibility for reviewing the
Company’s amangements on whistle-
blowing, ensuring that appropriate
arrangements are in place for employees

to be able to raise, in confidence,
matters of possible impropristy, with
suitable subseqguent follow-up acticn.

The committee has the authority to seek
any information it requires to periorm

its duties from any employee of the
Company and to obtain outside legal

or other independent professional
advice as appropriate,

The number of committee meetings
and their attendance by the Directors
are set out in the table on page 31.
Representatives of KPMG Audit Plc,
the Chief Executive Officer and the
Group Finance Director attend each
meeting as a matter of practice

and presentations are made by the
executive management as required.

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee comprises
three non-executive Directors.

Jon Moulton was Chairman until his
retirement from the Board on 30 October
2008, with Michael Benson and Nick
Land as members who served on the
committee throughout the year. Effective
1 July 2009 Jonathan Asquith has joined
the committee as its Chairman. The
committee now consists of Jonathan
Asquith, Michael Benson and Nick Land.

As Jon Moulton was not an independent
Director and retired on 30 October
2008, the Group did not comply during
the year with the 2006 Code
requirement that the remuneration
committee should consist of at least
three independent non-executive
directors but will now do so from the
new financial year as a resutt of the
appointrnent of Jonathan Asquith.

A report on the activities of the committee
is included in the Remuneration report

on pages 39 to 45. The terms of
reference for the committee take

into account the requirements of the
Combined Code 2006 and are available
for inspection at the registered office,

at the Annual General Mesting and

can also be found on the Company
website at www.ashmoregroup.com.
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The terms of reference for the

committee include:

+ reviewing the ongoing appropriateness
and relevance of the remuneration
policy;

= reviewing the design of all share
incentive plans for approval by the
Board and shareholders;

+ ensuring that members of the
executive management of the
Company are provided with
appropriate incentives to encourage
enhanced performance;

« making recommendations to the
Board as to the Company’s framework
or broad policy for the remuneration of
the Chairman, the executive Directors
and the Company Secretary and to
determine their total individual
remnuneration packages including
bonuses, incentive payments and
share options or other share awards;

» ensuring that a significant proportion
of executive Directors’ remuneration
is structured so as to link rewards to
corporate and individual performance;
and

« ensuring that contractual terms
on termination, and any payments
made, are fair to the individual and the
Company, that failure is not rewarded
and that the duty to mitigate loss
is fully recognised.

Details of the activities of the
remuneration committee are set out
in the Remuneration report on pages
39 to 45.

The number of cornmittee meetings andg
their attendance by the Directors are set
out in the table on page 31. In addition,
and in accordance with the terms

of reference, the members of the
committee were also consulted on a
range of issues during the year, including
specific matters related to recruitment.

Nominations committee

The nominations committee comprises
three non-executive Directors. In the
period to 30 October 2008 the committes
consisted of Michael Benson as

Chairman, Nick Land and Jon Moulton.

~ Jonathan Asquith joined the committee

on 1 July 2009, Michael Benson and
Nick Land served on the committee
throughout the year.

The terms of reference for the commitiee
take into account the requirements

of the Combined Code 2006 and are
available for inspection at the registered
office and at the Annual General Mesting
and can also be found on the Company
website at www.ashmoregroup.com.

The terms of reference for the

committee include:

« reviewing the structure, size and
compasition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the
Board and its committees;

« reviewing annually the time required
from each non-exscutive Director,
using performance evaluation to
assess whether the non-executive
Director is giving sufficient
commitment to the role;

« giving full consideration to succession
planning in the course of its work,
taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Company and
what skills and expertise are needed
on the Board in the future; and

» ensuring that on appointment to the
Board, non-executive Directors receive
a formal letter of appointment setting
out clearty what is expected of them
in terms of time commitment,
committee service and involvernent
outside Board meetings.

During the year the activities of the
committes have included the
engagement of external recruitment
consultants for the purposes of
reviewing the names of potential
independent non-executive candidates
for appointment to the Board, proposals
for rotation and re-glection of Directors
at the Annual General Meeting,
discussing the results of the annual
performance evaluation exercise
(noting the satisfactory operations

of the committee), and reviewing its
terms of reference. The number of

committee meetings and their
attendance by the Directors are set
out in the table on page 31.

Relations with shareholders

The Company places great importance
on communication with its investors and
aims to keep shareholders informed by
means of regular communication with
institutional shareholders, analysts and
the financial press throughout the year.

Annual and interim reports and trading
updates are widely distributed to other
parties who may have an interest in the
Group's performance. These documents
are also made available on the
Company’s website where formal
Regulatory Information Service
announcements are also posted. The
Chief Executive Officer and Group
Finance Director make regular reports
to the Board on investor relations and
on specific discussions with major
shareholders and the Board receives
coples of all research published on

the Company.

The 2008 Annual General Meeting will
be attended by all Directors, and the
Chairmnen of the audit, nominations
and remuneration committees wil be
available to answer questions. Private
investors are encouraged to attend
the Annual General Meeting.

The Senior Independent Director is
available to shareholders if they have
concems which contact through the
normal channels of Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer or Group Finance
Director has faled to resolve or for
which such contact is inappropriate.
The Company continues to offer
major shareholders the opportunity
to meet any or all of tha Chairman,
the Senior Independent Director
and any new Directors,

The Group will announce via a regulatory
information service the number of

proxy votes cast on resolutions at the
Annual General Meeting and any other
general meetings.
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Corporate governance report

continued

Internal eontrol

In accordance with the principles of
the 2006 Code, the Board is ultimately
responsible for the Group's system

of intemal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such a system and its
review are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and

can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Within the Group’s over arching corporate
govemance framework, through which
the Board aims to maintain full and
effective control over appropriate strategic,
financial, operational and compliance
issues, an interal contral framework
has been established, against which

the Company is able to assess the
effectiveness of its system of intemal
controls The Group's system of intermal
control is embedded within its routing
operations, and a strong control culture
is combined with clear management
responsibility and accountabilities for
individual control, The intermal control
framework provides an ongoing process
for identifying, evaluating and managing
the Group's significant risks, and has
been in place for the year under review
and up to the date of approval of the
Annual Report and Accounts. The
process is regularty reviewed by the
Board, and accords with the guidance
in the document “Intermal Control:
Revised Guidance for Directors on

the Combined Code, October 2005
(“Tumbull Guidance”} published by

the Financial Reporting Council.

The executive Directors oversee

the key risks and controls and the risk
management process on a day-to-day
basis, and have put in place an
organisational structure with clearly
defined lines of responsibllity and
delegation of authority.

The Group's Risk and Compliance
Committee (RCC), which mests monthty,
is responsible for maintaining a sound
intemal control environment and for

assessing the impact of the Group’s
ongoing activities on its regulatory

and operational exposures. The RCC
is chaired by the Head of Risk
Management and Control; the other
members are the Chief Executive,

the Group Finance Director, the Head
of Operations and Client Relationship
Management, the Head of Compliance,
the Head of Information Technology,
the Head of Legal and Transaction
Management and the Group Financial
Controfler. Responsibility for risk
identification is shared amongst these
senior management personnel, with
each such individual being responsible
for day-to-day control of risk in their
business area.

There are established policies and
procedures to enable the Board,
through its regular mestings, to monitor
the effectiveness of the intemal control
systern, which covers all significant
identified internal and external strategic,
operational, financial, compliance and
other risks, including the Group’s ability
to comply with all applicable laws,
regulations and clients' requirements.
The Board has continued to receive
regular financial and other management
information related to the controf of
expenditure against budget and the
making of investments, and for
monitoring the Group's business

and its performance, and regular
compliance and risk reperts.

Through the audit committes, the

Board has conducted an annual review
and assessment of the effectiveness

of the intemal control system, and

has identified no significant failings

or weaknesses during this review.

In conducting this review, the Board has
considered the periodic reports received
throughout the year on compliance and
risk matters, and the Annual Report on

internal control processes from the RCC.

The Board is satisfied that appropriate
planned actions continue to be effective
in improving controls as the Group
develops, and its overall assessment

of the control framework continues to
be satisfactory.

The main features of the Group's internal
control system are set out below.

Policies

These include:

« core values and policies, which
together form the Group's high-level
principles and controls, with which
all staff are expected to comply;

« policies and procedure manuals,
applicable to all business units,
with requirements for reporting
weaknesses and for monitoring
comective action;

« acode of business conduct, with
procedures for reporting compliance
therewith;

« adefined operaticnal framework
and organisational structure with
appropriate delsgation of authority
and accountability,

« a planning framework is maintained
which incorporates a Board approved
strategic plan, with objectives for sach
business unit.

Processes

These includa:

» regular business reviews of the
Company and its subsidiaries are
performed by senior management,
which consider the ongoing effects of
change and the short-, medium- and
leng-term operational requirements;

» quarterly senior management systems
and controls reviews that are
undertaken by the Group Finance
Director with the Head of Compliance,
ard in which the Chief Executive
Officer participates at least annually,
incorporating the evaluation of the
potential impact and likefihood of
identified risks and possible new
risk areas;

« amatrix of principal risks identifies key
business, operational, financial and
compliance risks, and considers the
likelihood of those risks crystallising
and the resultant impact, Within the
matrix, the inherent risk of each
business activity has been identified,
and the adequacy and mitigating
effect of existing processes assessed,
to determine a current residual risk
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The Group’s system of internal control
is embedded, with clear management
responsibility and accountability.

level for each such activity, On the
basis that further mitigants may be
employed over time, a target residual
risk for each activity after one to two
years has been defined;

Key Risk Indicator {*KRI") statistics
that are reported to and analysed

by the RCC. The KRls indicate trends
in the Group’s risk profile, assist in
the reduction of errors and potential
financial losses and seek to prevent
exposure by proactively dealing with
a potential risk situation before an
event actually occurs;

well-defined procedures goveming the
appraisal and approval of comporate
investments, including seeding of funds
and purchase of own shares, with
detailed investment and divestment
approval procedures, incorporating
appropriate levels of authority and
regular post-investment reviews;
secure information and
communication systems, capable

of capturing relevant and up-to-date
information by relevant personnel;
strong financial controls, maintained
to ensure accurate accounting for
transactions, appropriate authorisation
limits to contain exposures, and
reliability of data processing and
integrity of inforrnation generated;

an in-depth annual budget that is
reviewed and approved by the Board,
and regularly updated through

a formal re-forecasting process;

a monthly managerment accounts
pack presented to Board members
along with other relevant reports,
highlighting actual financtal
performance against budget/forecast
and prior year pericds;

detailed investment reports that

are prepared and discussed at each
of the sub-committee meetings of
the Group's investment committee,
which take place weekly or monthly
depending on investment theme.
Follow-up actions are agreed

and implemented within a strict
operational framework;

oversight of tha valuation
methodologies used for clients' fund
investments that cannot be readity

priced extemnally is the responsibility
of the Group's Pricing Methodology
Committee (PMC), which mests
monthty to review the current valuation
methodology for sach of these
investrments and to propose an
updated valuation methodology
where appropriate. Valuations of the
most material assets are cutsourced
to third parties.

« an experienced Group compliance
function, whose responsibility is to
ensure that the Group mests its
regulatory obligations at all times,
and integrates regulatory compliance
procedures and best practices.
Compliance undertakes an cngoing
compliance monitoring programme
covering all the relevant areas of the
Group's operations, to identify any
breach of compliance with applicable
legislation and regulation, which
includes real-time monitoring of
client mandate requirements. The
results of the compliance monitering
proegramme are reported to the
RCC in support of the overall risk
management framework;

Verification
These include:

« the extermal auditors who are
engaged to express an opinion on
the annual financial statements, and
also independently and objectively
review the approach of management
to reporting operating results and
financial condition,;

« the independent review of annual
reports by the Group’s external
auditors, pursuant to the Statement
of Auditing Standards No. 70,
type 1l (SAS 70);

+ half-yearly updates to the Board,
through the audit committee, from
the Group's extemnal auditors, which
include any control matters that have
come to their attention;

The Group did not through the year

have an intema) audit function, given
the size and nature of the business

and operational mode), with the relevant
assurances being obtained via the

intemal control framework described
above and by the cormmissioning of

the regular SAS 70 reports. Due to the
continuing development of the Group,
during the year the audit Ccommittee
considered the need for an intemal
audit function. This involved whether to
implement an internal or an outsourced
function and the nature and scope of the
work it would undertake, taking account
of the existing compliance monitoring
programmes which were already in
place. The committee concluded that
the best interests of the Group would
be served by contracting intemal audit
services through an cutsourced model.

Accordingly, with effect from 1 July
2008, following a recormendation frorm
the committes, the Board approved

the appointment of Emst & Young to
undertake this work, reporting to the
Group Finance Director and to the audit
committee, and from that date, the
Group became compliant with the
2006 Code inthat respect.

Corporate social responsibility

The Group recognises the importance
of corporate social responsibility (CSR)
incorporating transparency, fairness,
accountability and integrity, and believes
that these principles are fundamental

to the Group's operations. The Group
continues to monitor developments

in all relevant areas of CSR, including
environmental management, employees,
health and safety, suppliers and the
community to ensure that it meets best
practice and sees CSR as a continually
evolving process.

Investment

The Group belfieves that its reputation
as an ethical, trustworthy provider of
investment services is essential to its
core purpose of helping its clients to
build their financial security, Ashrnore
seeks to establish and maintain
long-term relationships with its clients
and intermediaries. The Group believes
this to be a fundamental pre-requisite
for the growth of the business.
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Corporate governance report

continued

Ashmore's Board of Directors seeks

to maintain a strong corporate culture
employing high standards of integrity
and fair dealing In the conduct of the
firm’s activities, compliance with both
the letter and the spirit of relevant laws
and regulations, and standards of
good market practice in all jurisdictions
where the firm's business is carried out.
The Board's aim is to enable Ashmore
to demonstrate that the firm is fit and
proper to undertake its business,

to safeguard the legitimate interests

of Ashimore clients and protect
Ashmore's reputation.

Social, ethical and ervironmental (SEE)
criteria tend to be focused primarily on
equity investing because of the influence
which shareholder interests are able to
exert on the management of a particular
company. Ashmore's exposure to equity
investrnents amounts to less than

18 per cent of total assets under
management, whereas the majority of
assets are invested in either external
debt (the majority of which is Soversign)
or local currency debt. In the case of
external debt investments, the Group's
ability to have an influence is generally
limited to a decision whether or not

to invest; however, at a country ‘evel
Ashmore believes that it may be able

to exert an influence through dialogue
with governments and central banks.

Ashmore's public equities business is a
small part of its overall business and its
shareholdings will never be large enough
to have an influence over the policies

of management in these companies.

Ashmore's Special Situations business
invariably involves clients taking
significant controfling stakes in investee
companies and in such circumstances -
Ashmore is in a position to positively
engage with the management of these
companies. In many cases Ashmore
believes it to be beneficial to its investors
to be proactive in promoting the

Ashmore brand locally by improving
the livelihoods of the employees in the
companies where the Group has a
controlling stake. Through Ashmore's
network of local holding companies
and portfolio of investes companies
Ashmore influences the livelihoods

of approximately 40,000 people.

Ashmore aims 1o avoid investing

in companies that do not:

+ respect human rights

» comply with loca) environmental,
ethical or social legislation.

Ashmore does not invest in companies
that manufacture or trade arms.

Ashmore also ams to ensure that any
investrnents which it makes comply
with the relevant industry standards and
best practice, treat their employees fairly,
have active community programmes
and operate with sensitivity to the
environment. Ashmore has made
investments in a number of renewable
energy projects in different countries
including hydro-electricity, gecthermal
energy and sugar-based ethano!
production, which reflects its overall
approach to combining ethical investing
with sound business practice on behalf
of clients.

Additionally, Ashmore funds and
segregated accounts each have a
specific investment mandate which sets
out the parameters for investment which
may include requirements to screen for
geographic, sector and stock-specific
restrictions. Stock-specific restrictions
may include securities which meet
clients' own CSR criteria.

The Ashmore Foundation

Consistent with the Group's
cormmitment to responsible corporate
citizenship, the Ashmore Foundation
was created in 2008 and is funded by
financial contributions from employees
of the Group. The Foundation reflects
Ashmore’s overall philosophy that it can
make a difference and seeks to provide
financial grants to worthwhile causes

within the ernerging markets in which
Ashmore operates with a view to putting
something back into the countries and
communities in which it invests and
which contribute to Ashmore's income
and profitability. The Foundation’s
grant-making palicy is wide-ranging
but has a particular focus on education
and healthcare, the former in particular
being seen as the best way to help the
long-term self-development of third
world countries.

Employees

Ashrmore employs 142 people in

six countries worldwide. Ashmore's
people have always been its most
important asset, at the heart of
everything it does. Ashmore has many
talented people and it remains a priority
to develop, manage and retain this
talent in order to deliver the potential

of the organisation. Ashmore wanis

to be an employer which the most
talented people aspire to join wherever
it operates.

Ashmore seeks to ensure that its
workforce reflects, as far as practicable,
the diversity of the many communities
in which it is located. Ashmore also
recognises the diverse needs of

its employees in managing the
responsibilities of their work and
personal lives, and believes that
achieving an effective balance in these
areas is beneficial to both the Company
and the individual.

Ashmore encourages employees to
act ethically and to clearly uphold the
standards of practice which its clients
have come to expect. It also means
ensuring that its employees understand
the strategic aims and objectives of the
Group and are clear about their role

in achieving them.

The Group recognises that the
imnvolvernent of its employees is key
to the future success of the business
and adopts a practice of keeping
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Ashmore seeks to ensure
that its workforce reflects
the diversity of the many
communities in which

it operates.

employees informed on significant
matters affecting them, via email and

in meetings aranged for the purposs.
The Group has consistently operated

a remuneration strategy that recognises
both corporate and individual
performance.

The Group is also committed to
following good practice in employment
matters, recognising the part this plays
in attracting and retaining staff. The
Group promotes the importance of high
ethical standards to all employees and
staff have the opportunity to veice any
concems they may have, either direct
with management or on a conficential
basis via the whistle-blowing process.

Equal opportunities

The Group is committed to ensuring that
all employees are treated fairly and with
dignity and respect. This commitment

is reflected in the Staff Handbook that

all employees receive on joining.

The policies and practices in place
within the Group to deter acts of
harassment and discrimination are
regularty monitored.

It is the Group’s policy that no employee
shall be treated less favourably on the
grounds of their sex, sexual orientation,
race, religion, nationality or marital status
or on the grounds of disability. This
policy applies, without limitation, to
promotion, training, placement, transfer,
dismissal, remuneration, grievance and
disciplinary procedures and decisions.
This policy also applies to persons

from outside the workplace and the
treatment of contract workers.

Health and safety

The Group has in place a global

health and safety policy which can

be accessed by alt staff via an intemal
database, The aim of this policy is to
provide both staff and visitors with a
safe and healthy working environment.
The Group is committed to adhering to
the high standards of health and safety

set out by its policies and procedures
and to providing training as necessary.

Environment

As an investment manager, Ashmore
has a limited direct impact upon

the envircnmeant and there are few
ervironmental risks associated with the
Group's activities. Ashmore moved into
its premises at 61 Aldwych, London in
May 2008 and occupies a single floor
of approximately 18,000 square fest

in a nine-storey multi-tenanted building.

As part of its ongoing commitment to
the environment, Ashmore throughout
its operations has adopted policies
and programmes {o promote energy
conservation and the avoidance of
waste through a number of initiatives,
such as the recycling of paper, glass
and other waste and the use of “green”
anergy. Electricity usage is separately
monitored by floor with renewable
energy accounting for a minimum of
10 per cent of supply. Energy-sfficient
lighting is installed in the building with
sensors which tum lights off when no
movement is detected. The building
has received an Energy Performance
Certificate with an Asset Rating of 98.

Ashmore endeavours to make
maximum use of available technology
such as video conferencing; however,
its business mode! as an investor in
emerging markets insvitably requires
that its investment professionals and
other members of staff travel frequently
to these countries to investigate

and monitor opportunities.

Ashmore has published a separate
Corporate Responsibility Report
which can be found on its website
at www.ashmoregroup.com.

By order of the Board

Michae! Perman
Company Secretary /

14 September 2009
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Report from the Chairman of the audit committee

The composition and summary terms
of reference of the audit commities
are set out on page 32.

The principal activities of the audit
committee through the year were
as follows:

Financlal statements

The audit committee reviewed the
2008 Annual Report, Interim Resuilts,
Preliminary Results and reports from
the extemal auditors, KPMG Audit Plc,
on the outcome of their reviews and
audits in 2009.

External audltors

The committee met with the extemal
auditors during the year to review the
scope of their audit and findings therecn
for the interim and year-end financial
staterments.

The committee received a
comprehensive presentation from
the auditors demonstrating to its
satisfaction how their independence
and objectivity is maintained when
providing non-audit services.

The committes has agreed the types

of permitted and non-permitted service
and those which require explicit prior
approval. Permitted non-aucdiit services
include ‘the provision of tax compliance
servicas and acting as reporting
accountant in appropriate circumstances,
provided there is no element of valuation
work involved. The provision of tax
advisory services, due diligence/
transaction services and litigation
services may be permitted with the
committee’s prior approval. The
provision of intemal audit services,
valuation work and any other activity
that may give rise to any possibility

of self-review are not permitted

under any circumstance.

The committee recommended to

the Board that a resolution be put to
sharehiolders for the re-appointment

of the auditors, and their reruneration
and terms of engagement, at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

From time to time during the year the
non-executives met with the extemal
auditors without the executive Directors
being prasent.

Internal controls

The committee reviewed and evaluated
the system of internal controls and

risk management operated within

the Company.

A detailed report on intemal control
can be found on pages 34 and 35.

internal audit

During the year the committes
considered the Group's need for an
internal audit function. This involved
consideration of whether to implement
an intemal or an outsourced function
and the nature and scope of the work
it would undertake, taking account

of the existing compliance monitoring
programmes which were already in
place. The committee concluded that
the best interests of the Group would
be served through an outsourced
model and with effect from 1 July 2008,
following a recommendation from

the committee, the Board approved
the appointment of Emst & Young to
undertake this work. Further details
can be found in the Intemal Control
section of the Corporate govemance
report on pages 34 and 35.

Audit committee effectiveness

The members of the committee
conducted a review of its effectiveness
and concluded that it was working
ffectively.

Nick Land
Chairman of the Audit Committee

14 September 2009

e G ¢




Remuneration report

ASHMORE GROUP PLC / AR 09 / GOVERMANCE / REMUNERATION REPORT

Unaudited information

Introduction

This report has been preparad on
behalf of the Board in accordance with
the Directors’ Remuneration report
Regulations 2002 under the Companies
Acts and the Combined Code 2006
{the 2006 Code). This report sets out
the Company's remuneration policy
and gives details of the compensation
of Directors for the year ended

30 June 2009,

Remuneration eommittee

The remuneration committee
comprises three non-executive Directors.
Jon Moulton was Chairman of the
cornmittee untit his retirernent from the
Board on 30 October 2008; Jonathan
Asquith joined the committes on

1 July 2009 and was appointed as
Chairman with Michael Benson and
Nick Land as members. Michael Benson
and Nick Land have served on the
committee throughout the year.

The remuneration committee meets
as often as required to discharge its
duties and met twice during the period
from 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2008.
Details of attendance at all meetings
for the financial year under review are
contained in the table on page 31 of
the Comworate governance report. The
Chief Executive Officer, Group Finance
Director, Company Secretary and
Head of Human Resources attended
all or part of the mestings at the invitation
of the remuneration committee but
took no part in the determination

of their own remuneration.

The primary role of the remuneration
committee is to make recommendations
to the Board as to the Company’s
framework or broad policy for the
remuneration of the Chairman, the
executive Directors of the Board and
the Company Secretary, as well as
decide on total individual remuneration
packages for these positions.

Remuneration policy

The key objectives of the Company's

remuneration policy are to ensure that:

+ levels of remuneration are relative to
the Company’s market and sufficient
to attract and retain executive Directors
of the quality required to run the
Company successiully;

« the executive Directors and the
Company Secretary receive sufficient
incentives to motivate enhanced
performance;

« executive Directors and the Company
Secretary are failly rewarded for their
individual contributions to the
Company's overall performance; and

« effective risk management is promoted
and encouraged by executive Directors
and the Company Secretary.

In determining this policy, the
remuneration committee takes into
account a broad range of factors
including the interests of shareholders
and the financial and commercial
health of the Company.

The terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available
on the Company website at
www.ashmoregroup.com.

Advisors

The remuneration committee has
appointed Mercer Limited to provide
advice on compensation matters when
considered appropriate. The Company
participates in the MclLagan Partners
compensation survey from which
relevant data is provided to the
remuneration committee.

Neither has any connection with
the Company other than previding
compensation advice and/or information.
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Remuneration report

continued

Service agreements

Each executive Director has entered into
a service agresment with the Company.
The service agreements do not have

a fixed term but include provisicns for
termination on 12 months’ notice by
aither party. Service agreements contain
no contractual entittement to receive
bonus payments or to participate in the
Company’s share plans. Participation

in these arangements is discretionary
and subject to approval by the
remuneration committes.

Non-executive Directors are appointed
for an initial three-year period. Their
continued engagement is subject to
the requirements of the Company's
Articles relating to the retirement of
directors by rotation.

The Company has maintained directors’
and officers’ liability insurance cover
throughout the period.

The table below provides details of the
Directors’ service agreements/letters of
appointment for current Directors and
Directors who served during the year.

Directors’ service cantracts

Executive Directors are permitted

to serve as non-executive directors
of other non-Group companies
where there is no competition to the
Company's business activities and
where these duties do not interfere
with the individual's ability to perform
his duties for the Company. In the
reporting year neither Mark Coombs
nor Graeme Del! hold any non-executive
directorships.

There are no provisions for compensation
of executive Directors on early
termination save as described below:

(a) the contracts for Mr Coombs and
Mr Dell contain provisions entitling the
Company to terminate employment
without notice subject to making 12
monthly payments thereafter equivalent
to monthly basic pay and benefits; and

{b) all Directors’ contracts entitle the
Cormpany to give pay in lieu of notice.

Executive remuneration components
The Company rewards exceptional
parformance and so emphasises
the variable components of the
remungration package.

Fixed compensation

Fixed compensation components
comprise basic salary and benefits

in kind. Basic salaries are set with
acap currently operated at a maximum
annual salary of £100,000 as it is the
Company's policy to maintain its fixed
cost base at a low level.

Variable compensation

The Cormpany's discretionary variable
compensation provides for both an
annual cash bonus, which is non-
pensionable, and deferred share
awards. The total variable compensation
is determined by reference to the
individual's performance against agreed
criteria, the profitability of the Company
and the external market. Performance
criteria are established appropriate to
the individual's role, to include such
measuras as growth in assets under
management (AuM) and profitability
where appropriate and other key areas
of individual performance.

Dats appointed Contract Notlce Expiry/
Director date period reviow date

Executive Directors
Mark Coombs 3 December 1998 21 September 2006 1 year Rolling
Graeme Dell 19 December 2007 3 December 2007 1 year Rolling
Non-executive Directors
Jon Moulton™ 24 February 1999 11 October 2006 1 month 11 October 2009
Michas! Benson — Chairman™ 3 July 2006 3 July 2009 1 month 3 July 2012
Nick Land** 3 July 2006 3 July 2009 1 menth 3 July 2012
Jonathan Asquith 1 September 2008 1 September 2008 1 month 1 September 2011
Melda Donnelly 1 July 2009 1 July 2009 1 month 1 July 2012
Notes

«Jon Mousiton retired from the Board on 30 October 2009,
«sMichael Benson and Nick Land were invited 10, and agreed to, serve a further threa years after their inftlal three-year périod of appoiniment expirad on 3 July 2009,
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Basic salaries are set with an annual salary cap
operated at a maximum of £100,000.

The Company’s intention is to pay

to members of staff an amount in total
of up to 25 per cent of profit before tax,
interest and variable compensation in
respect of its totat variable compensation
comprising cash bonus, including
national insurance obfigations thereon,
and share-based payments, including
fair value and national insurance costs in
this respect. For the financial year ending
30 June 2009 the provision for variable
compensation is at 14 per cent of EBIT
before variable compensation. In view
of the stringent salary controls which

the Group operates the remuneration
committee does not consider it
necessary or appropriate to set a cap
on individuai discretionary bonus
awards, atthough such awards will be
rmade within the overall provision for
variable compensation as set out above.

The remuneration committee has
considered the guidance issued by the
Financial Services Authority (FSA) and
in particular its emphasis on the need
to ensure that remuneration plans do
not incentivise excessive risk-taking
and short-termism. The committee
believes that the nature of the vaniable
remuneration plans in place meets

the requirements of the FSA guidelines
in regard to the proportion of variable
remunaration of executive Directors and
senior staff across the business which
is deferred, the length of the deferral
period and the performance conditions
attached to the deferred awards.

For reasons related to Rule 8 of the
takeover code Mark Coombs has
chosen to waive any shares offered to
him as part of his variable remuneration
as the issuance of further shares

to him would increase his existing
shareholdings to an extent that would
trigger a mandatory bid for all shares.

The rermuneration committee

believes that Mark Coornbs’ existing
shareholding is more than adequate

to align his interests fully with the
long-term performance of the Company.

Mark Coombs' performance measures
include targets for EBIT and AuM
growth as well as the progression of
strategic opportunities and operational
development. He has requested that he
not be considered for a bonus award for
the year snding 30 June 2009. Similar
performance measures will be applied in
the financial year ending 30 June 2010.

Graeme Dell's performance
measurements are a basket of
operational, strategic and compliance-
related targets pertaining to his areas
of responsibdlity, including finance,
technology, compliance, operations
and investor relations, The committee
is satisfied that key targets were metin
the year ended 30 June 2008. Similar
performance measures will be applied
to the financial year ending 30 June 2010.

The halance between the fixed and
variable elements of total compensation
for each of the executive Directors for
the year ending 30 June 2009 is shown
in the table below.

Total compensation

Leng-term share award plans

As a businass which is completely reliant
upon the intellectual capital of its people
the Board considers it essential to have
in place share incentive arrangements
which provide a significant element of
“at risk” compensation and which are
designed to attract, motivate and retain
highly qualified executives, investment
management professionals, and other
key employees who are critical to our
long-term success, and to align their
interests with those of our clients

and shareholders.

The overall limits operated under the
plans described below, which were
established prior to the listing of the
Comparny, are designed to fulfil these
objectives. The number of shares which
may be issued in aggregate under

any employee share plan of the
Company over any ten-year period
following Admission is limited to 15 per
cent of the Company's issued share
capital at that time. The Company's
obligations under the share plans can
be met by newly issued shares in the
Company or shares purchased in the
market by the trustees of an employee
benefit trust.,

The Company operates three share
award plans. All employess including
executive Directors are eligible to receive
awards under the share award plans.

Variable - Varlable -
Fired cash deterved Total
Mark Coombs 100% 0% 0% 100%
Graeme Dell 13% 52% 3% 100%
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Remuneration report

continued

Deferred compensation

The Gompany Executive Omnibus Incentive
Plan ("Omnibus Plan™)

This plan was adopted on 11 October
2006.

Senior employees routingly receive a
proportion of their remuneration in the
form of restricted shares, which vest
after five years but qualify for dividends
from the date of award. Employees who
receive an award of restricted shares
under the Omnibus Plan may also be
given the opportunity to commute cash
bonus awarded into bonus shares.
Should employzes take up this option,
the Company may match the award
with matching shares. All share awards
for employees who remain employed
by the Company clifi-vest at five years.

In the case of executive Directors
restricted and matching share awards
will be subject to total shareholder returm
(TSR) performance conditions, but
bonus share awards will not be subject
to a TSR performance condition as

the executive Directors will have waived
cash bonus in order to receive them.

Awards under the Omnibus Plan

are subject to good and bad leaver
provisions. Should an award holder
leave employment for reasons that
would categorise them as a bad leaver,
all restricted and matching share awards
will be forfeited. Should an award holder
leave employment for reasons that

would categorise them as a good leaver,
then restricted and matching share
awards would vest on a pro-rated

basis. Borius share awards will vest

and be transferred to the award holder
free of restrictions upon termination

of employment for any reason

other than dismissal for cause

or personal bankruptcy.

The plan also allows the issus of option
and share awards of different types.
No options have been issued under
this plan during the year.

The Omnibus Plan includes individual
limits in respect of option and share
awards made to executive Directors in
any annual period whereby an award
will be limited and take sffect so that

(a) no participant who is an executive
Director of the Company is granted
market valuge options, discounted
options or premium ¢ost options in any
annual period over more than 2,000,000
ordinary shares of 0.01 pence each, and
(b} no participant who is an executive
Director of the Company is granted
share awards in any annual period over
more than 1,000,000 ordinary shares of
0.01 pence gach. If there are exceptional
circumstances that the remuneration
committee considers justify making
awards in excess of these limits, the
remuneration committee may, in respect
of the relevant participant, apply double
the limits above. These individual limits
were amended in 2007 from a multiple
of base salary to a number of shares

as the salary cap that the Company
operates was unduly restrictive on the
guanta of share awards permissible.
This change was approved by
shareholders at the 2007 AGM.

Ashmore Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan — grant to Graeme Detl 2008

The Ashmore First Discretionary Share Option
Scheme (“Option Scheme™)

This scheme was established on

23 October 2000. Subsequent to the
Company’s Admission in October 2006,
it is not intended to issue any further
options under this scheme.

The Approved Company Share Gption Plan
{"CS0P™)

This plan was adopted on 11 October
2006 and approved by HMRC on

1 June 2007. The CSOP provides for
the granting of options up to a market
value limit of £30,000 to each individual
on the date of grant. No awards have
been made under this plan to date.

During the financial year share awards
waere granted to Graeme Dell from the
Omnibus Plan on 17 October 2008
as set forth in the table below and as
reported in the Remuneration report
for the year ended 30 June 2008.

No share awards were made to
Mark Coombs in the financial year.

Number of Number ot Kumber of Market price at Date of Roleass
restricted shares* bonus shares matching shares* date of grant grant date
206114 222,085 222,085 162.10p 17 October 2008 16 October 2013
Note

*Awards subject to TSR performance measures. Bonus shares relate to a proportion of cash bonus award voluntarity deferred into Ashmore shares by the recipient.




Employees receive a proportion of their
remuneration in the form of restricted
shares which vest after five years.
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Total shareholder return (TSR}

performance measure

The remuneration committee has
established a comparator group against
which to measure TSR performance

in respect of share awards to executive
Directors under CSOP and the Omnibus
Plan. Share awards will not vest at below
median performance. Twenty five per
cent of share awards will vest for median
performance rising to full vesting at
upper quartite performance, with
straight-line proportionate vesting
between these two points.

TSR is considered appropriate as

a well-established and recognised
performance measure which aligns the
interests of the executive Directors with
those of the shareholders. In the absence
of any other dedicated emerging
markets investment management
companies, a comparator group

of 16 companies has been selected
from global investment management
companies of a similar size that are
established and actively trading on
stock markats. This comparator group
has reduced by three following the
suspension from trading or acquisition
of three of the original comparator
group companies,

Valua of £100 invested on 11 Octaber 2006
g

TSR performance graph

The graph below shows the growth

in the Company's share price since
Admission against the FTSE 250 {both
on a TSR basis). The FTSE 250 index
has been selected as the index in
which the Company is currently listed.

Audited information

Penslons

During the course of the year ending
30 June 2009, the Company wound
up the Ashmaore Group Plc Retirement
and Death Benefit scheme and replaced
it with a pension benefit of equivalent
value managed by an altemative
provider. Any accrued benefit under
the previously existing scheme was
transferred to the new Group Personal
Pension scheme. Executive Directors
are entitled to join the Group Personal
Pension Scheme (“Pension Scheme”)
under which the Company makes
contributions at 7 per cent of basic
salary. There is no mandatory
requirement for executive Directors, or
any employees, to contribute. Following
the changes to pensions legistation
introduced from 6 Aprit 2006, Mark
Coombs has elected for employer

- Ashmore Group
— FTSE 250
= Pgers”

0

11 October 2006 30 June 2007

30 June 2008 30 June 2099

contributions to cease and equivalent
taxable cash payments have been made
to him in liew. Graerne Dell is a member
of the Group Personal Pension Scheme.

Other benefits

Executive Directors are entitled to a lump
sum death-in-service benefit of four
times basic salary. In addition, executive
Directors are entitled to membership

of the Company medical insurance
scheme, an annual health check and

a number of other minor benefits to
encourage and facilitate good health
and a healthy work-life balance.

Source: Graph provided by Mercer Limited using
a methedology compliant with the requirements
of Schedule 7A 1o the Companies Act 1985,

*TSR peer group as at 30 June 2009.
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Remuneration report

continued

Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2009 was as follows:

Year ended Year endad
Cash 30 June 2009 30 Juna 2008
Salarias Fees Benefits bonus Total Tota)
Notas £ £ £ £ £ £
Executive Directors
Mark Coombs 1,6 100,000 - 8,636 - 108,636 4,308,816
Graeme Dell 2,38,7 100,000 - 8,636 420,000 528,636 782,576
Non-executive Directors
Michael Benson 4,5 - 125,000 - - 125,000 100,000
Jonathan Asquith - 41,666 - - 41,666 -
Nick Land - 50,000 - - 50,000 30,000
Jon Moulton - 10,000 - - 10,000 15,000
Melda Donnelly 4,8 - - - - - -
Notes

1. Mark Coombs has requested that he not be considered for a bonus award for the year ending 30 June 2008,

2. Graame Dell's variable compensation is made up of 60 per cent cash bonus and 40 per cent deferred share awards. He may choosa o commute up to 50 per cent
of his cash bonus in favour of an equivalent amount of bonus share awards which will then be matched by the Company with an equivalent vatue in maiching
share awards. All share awards will ba reported in the Directors' share awards table in the year of grant,

3. During the year ended 30 June 2008 Grasme Dell chose 1o commute 50 per cent of his cash bonus thus reducing his cash compensation from £782,576
to £422,576.

4, Non-executiva Directors do not receive any additional fees for committee memberships.

. Michael Benson has waived his right to feas over £100,000 and has asked that any additional monies are paid to a charity or chanities of his choice.

. Mark Coombs’ benefits include payment in lisu of pension equivalent to 7 per cent of basic salary in the “Benefits” column. His benefits also include membership

of tha Compary medical scheme,

7. Graema Dell's benefits include a pension contribution of 7 per cent of basic salary in the *Benefits” column, His benefits also include membership of the Company
medical schemea,

8. Melda Donnelly was appointed on 1 July 2009 and so received no payments during the year ended 30 June 2008

9. Jon Moutton servad until 30 October 2008. His Director’s fees wera waived to a charity nominated by himsalt.
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Directors’ share awards
The Company Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan

Number of shares Number of shares Total number
at baginning granted during of shares at end Market price at Date fAslsase
of periad the period of period date of grant of grant date
Graeme Dell 272,480 £2.7525 3 December2007 2 December 2012
- 740,284 £1.6210 17 October 2008 16 October 2013
1,012,764
Nots
1. This comprises restricted shares, bonus shares and matching shares as shown in the table on page 42,
No share awards have been made to non-executive Directors.
Directors’ interests in ordinary shares of Ashmore Group plc
30 June 2009 30.June 2008
Executive Directors
Mark Coombs 303,324,200 303,324,200
Graeme Dell 1,012,764 272,480
Non-executive Directors
Michael Benson 29,000 28,000
Nick Land 29,000 29,000
Jonathan Asguith - -

Melda Donnelly

The market price of the Company's shares as at 30 June 2009 was £1.8925. The highest share price during the financial year

was £2.7125. The lowest share price was £1.0075 per share.
By order of the Board

Jonathan Asquith
Chairman of the remuneration committee

14 September 2009

o
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Financial statements

“Ashmore recorded a profit after
tax of £115.5 million, giving rise
to an EPS of 17.1 pence per share,
and a full-year dividend of
12.0 pence per share.”




Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Ashmore Group plc
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We have audited the financial statements
of Ashmore Group pic for the year ended
30 June 2009 set cut on pages 48 to 84.
The financial reporting frameworl that
has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted
by the EU and, as regards the parent
company financial staternents, as
applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

This report is made solely to the
Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with sections 495, 496 and
497 of tha Companies Act 2008, Qur
audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Company’s
rmembers those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditors’ report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responshbility to
anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members, as a body,
for our audit work, for this report,

or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors

and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statement set out on
page 29, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial
statemenits and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit the financial
staterments in accordance with
applicable law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's
{APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an

audit of financial statements is
provided on the APB's website at
www.fre.org.uk/apb/scope/UKP.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

« thefinancial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group’s
and of the parent company's affairs
as at 30 June 2009 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended,

« the group financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

» the parent company financial
statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the EU and as applied
in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006; and

« the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

GCompanies Act 2006

In our opinion:

« the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies
Act 2006; and

« the information given in the Directors’
Report for the financial year (which
includes that specific information
presented in the Business review that
is cross referred from the Principal
activity and business review section
of the Directors’ Report} for which the
financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial staterments.

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

We have nothing to report in respect
of the following:

Under the Companies Act 2006 we

are required to report to you if, in

our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have
not been kept by the parent company,
or retums adequate for our audit
have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

s the parent company financial
statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and retumns; or

+ certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

« we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require for our audit.

Under the Listing Rules we are required

to review:

« the Directors' statement, set out on
pages 28 and 28, in relation to going
concem; and

« the part of the Corporate Govemance
Statement relating to the Company’s
compliance with the nine provisions
of the June 2008 Combined Code
specified for our review.

Paul Furneaux (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Ple,
Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants

One Canada Square

London J\/\ /L&'\
E14 SAG

14 September 2009
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 30 June 2009
2009 2008

Notes £m £m
Management fees 186.8 186.7
Performance fees 52.5 447
Cther revenue 6.4 101
Total revenue 245.7 2415
Less: Distribution costs {3.6) 4.7)
Less: Foreign exchange 2 (38.6) 3.2
Net revenue 2035 240.0
Personnel expenses 3 (36.0) (47.7)
Other expenses 4 {16.9) {11.1)
Operating profit 150.6 181.2
Interest income 9,2 15.0
Profit before tax 159.8 196.2
Tax expense 5 {44.3) {55.2)
Profit for the year 1155 141.0
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 115.0 140.8
Minority interests 05 0.2
Profit for the year 115.5 141.0
Eamings per share:
Basic 6 17.12p 21.03p
Diluted 6 15.99p 19.89p




Consolidated balance sheet
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Asat Asat
30 June 3t Juna
2009 2008
Notes £m £m

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 46 3.3
Intangible assets 10 6.7 41
Deferred acquisition costs 11 1.3 13.4
Other receivables 0.9 -
Deferred tax assets 13 14.0 13.8
Total non-current assets 375 34.6
Trade and other receivables 12 331 34.7
Available-for-sale financial assets 4.8 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.8 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 288.4 279.2
Total current assets 3271 3151
Non-current assets held-for-sale 14 348 16.4
Total assets 399.4 366.1

Equity
Issued capital 17 - -
Share premium 0.3 0.3
Retained samings 308.2 2715
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 3085 271.8
Minority interests 2.0 1.5
Total equity 3105 273.3

Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 13 1.5 3.8
Total non-current liabilities 1.5 3.8
Current tax 24.0 24.5
Derivative financial instruments 5.0 0.7
Trade and other payables 20 51.0 63.7
Total current liabilities 80.0 88.9
Non-current liabilities held-for-sale 14 74 04
Total liabilities 88.9 928
Total equity and liabilities 399.4 366.1

Approved by the Board on 14 September 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Mark Coombs Graeme Dell

Chief £x uﬂ Group Finange Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Total equity
attributable
to equity
Issued Shars Retained holders of Minexity Total
capital peernium eamings the parent interasts aquity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2007 - 0.3 1956 195.9 0.1 196.0
Net gains on available-for-sale
financial assets including deferred tax - - 0.4 04 - 0.4
Total income and expense
recognised directly in equity - - 0.4 04 - 0.4
Profit for the year - - 140.8 140.8 0.2 141.0
Total recognised income and expense - - 141.2 141.2 0.2 141.4
Issue of share capital - - - - 1.2 1.2
Share-based payments - - 8.8 8.8 - 88
Current tax related to
share-based payments - - (1.3) (1.3) - (1.3)
Deferred tax related to
share-based payments - - (2.7} 2.7) - 2.7)
Dividends to equity holders - - (70.1) (70.1) - (70.1}
Balance at 30 June 2008 - 0.3 271.5 271.8 15 273.3
Exchange adjustments on
translation of foreign operations - - 0.5 05 - 0.5
Net gains on available-for-sale
financial assets including deferred tax - - 2.3 2.3 - 23
Total income and expense
recognised directly in equity - - 28 28 - 2.8
Profit for the year - - 115.0 115.0 0.5 115.5
Total recognised income and expense - - 117.8 117.8 0.5 118.3
Own shares - - (0.8} (0.8) - (0.8)
Treasury shares - - (6.9) (6.9) - {6.9)
Share-based payments - - 8.2 8.2 - 8.2
Current tax related to
share-based payments - - 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Deferred tax related to
share-based payments - - 01 01 - 0.1
Dividends to equity holders - - (81.9) {81.9) - (81.9)
Balance at 30 June 2009 - 0.3 308.2 308.5 2.0 3105




Consolidated cash flow statement
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Year ended 30 June 2009
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 1989 2428
Cash paid to suppliers and employees {48.0) (47.3)
Cash generated from operations 150.9 195.5
Taxes paid (472.7) (46.5)
Net cash from operating activities 103.2 148.0
Investing activities
Interest received 9.3 154 !
Acquisition of subsidiary 22 3.7) - !
Net purchase of non-current assets held-for-sale (6.9) (15.1)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (4.7) -
Purchase of deferred acquisition costs 1 - (14.6)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9 (21) (3.5}
Net cash used in investing activities (8.1) (17.8}
Financing activities
Dividends paid 8 (81.9) (70.19)
Purchase of own shares {0.9) -
Purchase of treasury shares 19 (6.9) -
Net cash used in financing activities (89.7) (70.1)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 38 01
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 9.2 61.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 279.2 218.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 288.4 279.2
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 288.4 279.2
288.4 279.2
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Company balance sheet
Asat Asat
30 June 30 Jura
2009 2008
Notas £m £m
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 9 4.0 341
Intangible assets 10 41 41
Investment in subsidiaries 23 4.7 1.0
Deferred tax assets 13 14.0 138
Total non-current assets 26.8 22.0
Trade and other receivables 12 378 23.2
Cash and cash equivalents 207.0 174.6
Total current assets 2448 197.8
Total assets 271.6 219.8
Equity
Issued capital 17 - -
Shars premium 03 0.3
Retained earnings 2279 177.2
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 228.2 1775
Liahilities
Deferred tax liabilities 13 0.2 -
Total non-current liabilities 0.2 -
Current tax 109 4.6
Trade and other payables 20 32.3 377
Total current liabilities 43.2 42.3
Total liabilities 43.4 42.3
Total equity and liabilities 216 219.8

Approved by the Board on 14 September 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Mark Cocmbs Graeme Dell
Chief Executive Officer Group FRnance Director
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Company statement of changes in equity

Total aquity
attributable:
10 aquity
tssued Share Rstainad holders of
capital premium eamings the parent
£m £m £m £m
Balance at 1 July 2007 - 0.3 152.7 153.0
Profit for the year - - 89.8 89.8
Total recognised income and expense - - 89.8 89.8
Share-based payments - - 88 8.8
Current tax related to share-based payments - - (1.3} (1.3)
Deferred tax related to share-based payments - - (2.7) 2.7
Dividends to equity holders - - (70.1) {70.)
Balance at 30 June 2008 - 03 177.2 1775
Profit for the year - - 131.8 131.8
Total recognised income and expense - - 131.8 131.8
Own shares - - (0.8} (0.8}
Treasury shares - - (6.9) (6.9)
Share-based payments - - 8.2 8.2
Current tax related to share-based payments - - 0.2 0.2
Defarred tax related to share-based payments - - 0.1 01
Dividends to equity holders - - (81.9) (81.9)
Balance at 30 June 2009 - 0.3 2279 2282
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 30 June 2008
2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers 52.3 46.5
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (34.6) (39.2)
Cash generated from operations 177 7.3
Taxes paid {0.2) -
Net cash from operating activities 17.5 7.3
Investing activities
Interest received 6.0 10.2
Dividends received from subsidiaries 1155 78.0
Purchase of property, plant and sguipment 9 (1.7) (3.2
Net cash from investing activities 119.8 85.0
Financing activities
Dividends paid 8 (81.9) (70.1)
Investment in subsidiary 3.7 -
Loans to subsidiaries (11.5) {15.1)
Purchase of own shares (0.9) -
Purchase of treasury shares 19 (6.9) -
Net cash used in financing activities {104.9) (85.2)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 324 741
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 174.6 167.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 207.0 174.6
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash at bank and in hand 207.0 174.6
207.0 174.6
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Significant accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently to all years presented in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation to the Group and Company financial statements.

{a) Basis of preparation — Group and Company

The financial information has been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006. Based on these adopted IFRS, the Directors have selacted the accounting policies to be
applied, which are set out below.

The financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the measurement at fair value
of derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets that are held as available-for-sale.

The Company is taking advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 which allows it not to present
its individual income statement and refated notes.

Certain comparative amounts relating to foreign exchange have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
None of the changes are significant in nature.

{b) Basis of consuolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controllad by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly,

to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
vating rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that contro! ceases.

The results of subsidiaries acquired during the year are included in the Consolidated income staternent from the effective date
of acquisition.

(i) Transactions eliminated on consofidation
Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or incorme and expenses arising from intragroup transactions are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financiak staterents.

{c) Foreign currency translation

The Group’s financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling {“Sterling™, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency. ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic enviromment in which the entity operates (the functional currency).

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are tranglated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilties denominated in foreign cumrencies at the balance shest date are translated to Sterfing at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement. Non-maonetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

{ii} Financial staterments of foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated
to Sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to Sterling at rates approximating to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
differences arising on franslation are recognised directly in a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Significant accounting polictes {continued)

{d) Financial instruments
{i) Derivatives
The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to manage its forgign Curmency exposures.

Except when hedge accounting is applied, derivatives are initially recognised at cost on the date on which a contract is entered
into unless fair value at acquisition is different to cost, in which case the fair value is recognised. Subsequertly they are measured
at fair value with gains and losses recognised in the income statement. Transaction costs are recognised immediately in the
income statement, The fair value of the derivatives is their quoted market price at the balance sheet date.

All derivatives are carried as current assets when the fair value is positive and as current liabiliies when the fair value is negative.

(i) Financial assets

The Group may, from time to time, invest in furids where an Ashmore Group subsidiary is the investment manager or an advisor
{“seeding”). Where the holding in such investments is deemed to represent a controlling stake, and is acquired exclusively with a
view to subsequent disposal through sale or dilution, these seed investments are recognised as non-current assets held-for-sale
in accordance with IFRS 5: Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Where control is not deermed 1o exist,
and the assets are readily realisable, they are recognised as available-for-sale financial assets. The recognition policy for both

is set out below:

Financial assets held as non-current assets held-for-safe

Non-current assets held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell except where
measurement and re-measurement is outside the scope of IFRS 5. The relevant policy is set out In (d)(i). Where investments that
have initially been recognised as non-current assets held-for-sale, because the Group has besn deemed as holding a controlling
stake, are subsequently disposed of or diuted such that the Group’s holding is now insufficient to be deemed a controlling stake,
the investment will subsequently be reclassified as an available-for-sale financial asset. Any such reclassification wil crystallise any
gain or loss previously recognised directly through equity within the income statement. Subseqguent movements will be recognised
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for the newly adopted classification.

Financial assets held as available-for-sale

For available-for-sale financial assets, gains and losses arising from changes in their fair value are recognised directly in equity, unti
the security is disposed of or is impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is taken to the
income statement for the accounting period.

(iii} Tradle and other receivables and payables

Trade and other receivables and payables are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction costs. The fair value on acquisition
is normally the cost. Impairment losses with respect to the estimated irrecoverable amount are recognised through the income
statement when thera is appropriate evidence that trade and other receivables are impaired. However, if a longer texmn loan or
receivable carries no interest, the fair value is estimated as the present value of all future cash payments or receipts discounted
using the prevaing market rates. The resulting adjustment is recognised as interest expense or interest income. Subsequent
to initial recognition these assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost less any impaiment.

(iv} Hedge accounting

The Group applies cash flow hedge accounting when the transactions meet the specified hedge accounting criteria. To qualify

the following conditions must be met:

« Formal documentation of the relationship between the hedging instrument(s) and hedged item(s) must exist at inception.

« The hedged cash flows must be highly probable and must present an exposure to variations in cash flows that could
ultimately affect profitability.

« The effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured.

* The hedge must be highly effective, with effectiveness assessed on an ongoing basis.

For qualifying cash flow hedges, the change in fair value of the effective hedging instrument is intially recognised in equity and
is released to the income statement in the same period during which the relevant financial asset or liability affects profitability,

Where highly effective, any ineffective portion of the hedge is immediately recognised in the income staternent. Where the
instrument ceases to be highly effective as a hedge, oris sold, terminated or exercised, hedge accounting is discontinued.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{e) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment includes leasehold improvements and office equipment, and are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged to the income staternent on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefu! lives of each part of an

item of property, plant and equipment. The useful life of offica equipment is estimated to be five years. Inrespect of leasehold
improvements depreciation is charged over the remaining life of the lease or over the useful life of the improverments, whichever
is shorter. The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed at least annually.

{f) Intangible assets - goodwill
Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net ideritifiable assets acquired.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

{g) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and shart-term deposits with an criginal maturity of three
months or less. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above.

(h) Deferred acquisition costs

Costs that are directly attributable to securing an investment management contract are deferred if they can be identified separately
and measured reliably and it is probable that they will be recovered. Deferred acquisition costs represent the contractual right to
benefit from providing investment management services and are charged as the related revenue is recognised.

(i) Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Group's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indicaticn
of impairment. i any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwil, the recoverable amount

is estimated at each balance sheet date. An impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds

its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and valug in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

(j) Dividends payable
Interim dividends are recognised when paid and final dividends when approved by shareholders.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{k) Employee henefits

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement
when payable, in accordance with the scheme particulars,

(1) Share-based payments
The Group issues share awards to its employees under share-based compensation plans. The awards have been classified
as equity-settled under [FRS 2: Share-based Payments.

The fair value of the amounts payable to employees is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The fair value Is measured at grant date and spread over the vesting period. The fair value is measured using an appropriate
valuation model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted.

{m) Own shares

Own shares are held by an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) which acts as an agent for the purpose of the employee share-based
compensation plans. The holding of the EBT comprises own shares that have not vested unconditionafly to employees of the
Group. In both the Group and Comparty own shares are recorded at cost and are deducted from retained eamings.

{n) Treasury shares
Treasury shares are recognised in equity and are measured at cost. Consideration received for the sale of such shares is also
recognised in equity, with any difference between the procseds from the sale and original cost being taken to revenue reserves.

{o) Revenue

Revenue comprises management fees, performance fees and other revenue. Revenue is recognised in the income staterment

as and when the related services are provided. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will low to the Group and the revenue can be refiably measured, Specific revenue recognition policies are:

() Management fees

Management fees are accrued over the period for which the service is provided. Where management fees are received in advance
these are recognised over the period of the provision of the asset management service, which is estimated based on experience
of average holding periods for investments.

(i) Performance fees

Performangce fees relate to the performance of funds managed during the period and are recognised at the balance sheet date
when the quantum of the fee can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the fee will crystallise. This is usually at the end

of the performance period.

(iii) Other revenue
Other revenue includes transaction, structuring and administration fees, and reimbursement by funds of costs incurred by the
Group. This revenue is recognised when the related services are provided.

(p) Distribution costs
Distribution costs are cost of sales payable to third parties and are recognised over the period for which the service is provided.

(q) Operating leases

Payments payable under operating leases are recognised in the income staternent on a straight-ine basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives received are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term and are recorded as a reduction in
premises costs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

{r) Interest income
Interest income is calculated using an effective intarest rate method. Interest income comprises interest receivable on the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents.

{s) Taxation

(i) Income tax

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

() Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(iii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following
differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisaticn or settlement of the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

{t) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged sither in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Currently, management consider that the Group's services comprise one business segment (being provision of investment
management services) and that its operations are not run on a discrete geographic basis. This is demonstrated by the centralised
nature of key investment, risk and operating committees.

{u) Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabifities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed

to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readity apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
with a significant risk of material adjustment are described in note 27.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Adopted IFRS not yet applied

The following IFRSs endorsed by the EU were available for early application but have not been applied by the Group in these

consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 2 (Amended): Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
IFRS 3 {Amended): Business Combinations

IFRS 8: Operating Segments

I1AS 1 (Amended): Presentation of Financial Statements

1AS 27 {Amended): Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.

IFRS 1 and IAS 27 {Amended): Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-Controlled Entity or Associate

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future periods will have no material impact

on the financial statements of the Group.

Company
In addition to the above accounting policies, the following specifically relate to the Company.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlied by the Company. Control exists when the Comparny has the power, directly or indirectly,

to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fromits activities. In assessing control,

potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or convertible are taken into account.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost, less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

Financial guarantees

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies within its group,
the Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In this respect, the Company treats
the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes probable that the Company will be required to make

a payment under the guarantee or that guarantee expires for any reason.

2 Foreign exchange

The only foreign exchange rate which has a material impact on the reparting of the Group's resuits is the US Dollar.

Closing rats Closing rate Average rate Average rate

asat as at year andad year anded

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2009 2008 2009 2008

US Dollar 1.6458 1.9923 1.6044 2.0119
Analysis of foreign exchange

Year endad Year ended

30 June 30 Juna

2000 2008

£m £m

Realised and unrealised hedging (losses)/gains (42.4) 34

Translation gains on non-Sterling denominated monetary assets and liabilities 3.8 01

Total foreign exchange (losses)/gains {38.6) 3.2




3 Personnel expenses

Number of employees
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The number of employees of the Group (including Directors) during the reporting vears, analysed by category, was as follows:

Average for the Average for the

yoar endad year anded
30 .June 30 June At 30 June At 30 June
2009 2008 2009 2008
Number Number Number Number
Investrment management 130 80 142 a3
Total employees 130 80 142 a3

Analysis of employee benefits expense

Yearended Yaar ended
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Wages and salaries 89 53
Performance-related bonuses 10.1 235
Share-based payments 19 10,0
Social security costs 3.2 7.3
Pension costs 0.6 03
Other costs 1.3 1.3
Total employee benefits 36.0 477

The above table includes a total of £0.5 million (2008: £1.2 milion) waived by Directors and employees in current and earfier

periods, with an equivalent amount to be paid to charity in the financial year to 30 June 2010,

4 Other expenses

Other expenses
Year encied Year anded
30 fune 30 June
2009 2008
£m Em
Travel 33 25
Professional fees 3.0 2.2
Information technology and communications 21 14
Deferred acquisition costs charges 2.1 12
Operating leases 1.9 1.0
Premises-related costs 0.8 06
Insurance 0.6 0.5
Auditors' remuneration 0.6 0.7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 08 0.3
Other expenses 1.7 07
Total other expenses 16.9 111
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4 Other expenses {continued)

Auditors' remuneration

Year endad Year ended
30 Juna 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Statutory audit services:
- fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s accounts 01 01
Cther non-audit services:
— tax services 0.2 0.1
- other services 0.3 0.5
Total services 0.6 0.7
5 Taxation
Year ended Year ended
30 Juns 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Current tax:
Corporation tax on profits of the year 476 56.5
Adjustments in respect of prior years 01 (3.0)
Total current tax 477 53.5
Deferred tax arising from origination and reversal of temporary differences:
Current year (see note 13} (3.4) 1.7
Total tax charge for the year 443 55.2
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Current tax on share-based payments (0:2) 1.3
Deferred tax on share-based payments (see note 13} 0.1) 27
Deferred tax on available-for-sale assets 1.0 -
Tax charge recognised in equity 07 4.0




I
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5 Taxation {continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the year

Year anded Year endad
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
€m £m
Profit before tax 159.8 196.2
Tax at the UK tax rate of 28% (2008: Blended rate of 29.5%} 44.7 57.8 !
Effects of: I
Expenses not deductible 34 0.2
Deduction in respect of exercised options :
{Schedule 23 Finance Act 2003) (0.2) ()]
Other (0.1) -
Adjustrnents in respect of prior years
Current tax 01 (3.0}
Deferred tax (3.6) 0.3
Total tax charge for the year 44.3 55.2

6 Eamings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent
of £115.0 million (2008: £140.8 million) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is calculated as for basic eamings per share with an adjustment to the weighted average number
of ordinary shares to reflect the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There is no difference between the profit for the
financial year attributable to equity holders of the parent used in the basic and diluted earnings per share calculations.

Reconciliation of the figures used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share: }

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30.Juns |
2009 2008

Waeighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculation of basic eamings per share 671,667,998 669,671,683
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares - share options 47,330,538 38,322,426
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculation of diluted earnings per share 718,998,536 707,994,109
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7 Share-based payments

Group and Company share-based compensation plans
The following share-based compensation plans wers in operation during the reporting year.

The Ashmore First Discretionary Share Option Scheme {“Option Scheme”)

The Option Scheme was set up in October 2000, Options issued under the: Option Scheme typically have a life of 10 years
and vast after five years from date of grant. The fair value of options at each reporting year end have been accounted for on
an equity-settled basis. No further options will be issued undar the Option Scheme.

The Executive Omnibus Incentive Plan {“Omnibus Plan")

The Omnibus Plan was introduced prior to the Company listing in October 2006 and provides for the grant of share awards,
market value options, premium cost options, discounted options, linked options and/or nil cast options to employees. The Plan
will also aliow bonuses to be deferred in the form of share awards with or without matching shares. These elements can be used
singly or in combination.

The Approved Company Share Option Plan ("CSOP")

The CSOP was also introduced prior to the Gompany listing in October 2006 and is an option scheme providing for the grant
of market value options to smployess with the aggregate value of outstanding options not excesding £30,000 per employee.
The CSOP qualifies as a UK-tax-approved company share option plan and approval thereto has been obtained from HMRC.
To date there have been no awards made under the CSOP.

Share-based payments through the income statement

GI’IJI.ID and companv Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Option Scheme 0.3 0.3
Omnibus Plan 11.6 97
Total expense 119 10.0
Group and Company — Yoar oriod
30 June 30 June
200% 2008

Year of grant
2004 - 01
2005 01 041
2006 0.2 0.8
2007 21 14
2008 23 76
2009 7.2 -
Total expense 1.9 10.0




7 Share-based payments (continued)
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Share options outstanding

Share options outstanding under share-based compensation plans were as follows:

Group and Company
As at As at

30 June 2009 Welghted 30.Juns 2008 Welghted
Number of average Numnber of average
options sxercise price options sxercise price
p P
At beginning of year 32,670,946 16.96 38,152,921 15.84
Granted - - - -
Exercised (462,500) 553 (4,712,500) 1.38
Forfeited (83,125) 23.20 (769,475) 23.99
At end of year 32,125,321 17.10 32,670,946 16.96
Options exercisable 2,037,500 538 1,575,000 1.30

The weighted average share price on the date options were exercised during 2009 was 172,27 pence (2008: 240.83 pence}.

Weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding options

Group and Company
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
Qutstanding options 32,125,321 32,670,946
Weighted average exarcise price 17.100 16.896p
Weighted average remaining contracted life {years) 5.49 6.92
Range of exercise prices for share options outstanding at the end of the year 0.52p-170.00g  0.52p-170.00p
L 1
Group and Company
2009 2008
Numbaer Number
Exercise price per share (p) Exercise periods
0.00-10.00 11 December 2005-11 December 2012 1,300,000 1,575,000
10.00-20.00 9 December 2008-8 December 2015 28,293,750 28,496,875
20.00-30.00 28 April 2011-10 September 2016 2,355,100 2,422 600
170.00-180.00 8 December 2011-7 December 2016 176,41 176,471
32,125,321 32,670,946
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7 Share-based payments (continued)

There were no new share option awards granted during the year ended 30 June 2009 (2008: none}.

Share awards outstanding
Share awards outstanding under the Omnibus Plan were as follows:
Group and Company
Asat Ag at
Kumber of 3 J:J:Tuzlgg % ﬂlmbzgog Waeighted
shares subjsct averzge shares subject average
o awards shara price to awards shars price
£ £
Restricted share awards
At beginning of year 4,290,802 2.56 2,009,522 2.33
Granted 6,813,128 1.62 2,498,586 275
Forfeited (112,683) 1.81 {217,318) 2.48
At end of year 10,991,247 199 4,290,802 2.56
Bonus share awards
At beginning of year 761,076 275 - -
Granted 1,044,231 1.62 761,076 275
Forteited (4,910) 2.75 - -
At end of year 1,800,397 210 761,076 275
Matching share awards
At beginning of year 761,076 2.75 - -
Cranted 1,044,231 1.62 761,076 275
Forfeited {4,910) 2.75 - -
At end of year 1,800,397 210 761,076 275
Total 14,592,041 2.01 5,812,954 2.61

The fair values of awards granted under the Omnibus Plan are determined by the average share price for the preceding five

business days prior to grant.

Where the grant of share awards is linked to the annua! bonus process the fair value of the awards is spread over a period

including the current financial year and the subsequent five years to their release date when the grantee becomes unconditionally
entitled to the undertying shares. Of the restricted share awards cf 14,592,041 as at 30 June 2009 the amount of 10,991,247 were
granted as part of the Group’s variable compensation process. The fair value of the remaining awards is spread over the period

from date of grant to the release date.
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8 Dividends

An anatysis of dividends is as follows:

Group and Company

i) 2008
Dividend's declared/proposed in respect of the year: :
Interim dividend declared per share (p) 3.66 3.66
Final dividend proposed/declared per share (p) 8.34 8.34
Dividends paid in the year:
Interim dividend paid {£m) 249 249
Interim dividend per share (p) 3.66 3.66
Final dividend paid {£m) 57.0 452
Final dividend per share (p) 8.34 6.70

Dividends are recognised in the accounts in the year in which they are paid, or in the case of a final dividend when approved
by the shareholders.

On 15 September 2009 the Board proposed a final dividend of 8.34 pence per share for the year ended 30 June 2008. This has
not been recognised as a liability of the Group at the year end as it has not yet been approved by shareholders. Based on the
number of shares in issue at the year end which qualify to receive a dividend, the total amount payable would be £56.7 milion
(2008: £57.0 million).

9 Property, plant and equipment

Group
2009 2008
Fixtures, Fixtures,
fittings and fittings and
squipment equipment
£Em £m
Cost
At beginning of year 3.7 0.7
Additions 21 3.5
Disposals - (0.5}
At end of year 5.8 3.7
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 0.4 0.5
Depreciation chargs for year 0.8 0.3
Disposals - {0.4)
At end of year 1.2 0.4
Net book value at 30 June 4.6 3.3
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9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Company
2009 2008
Fixtures, Fixtures,
fittings and fittings and
squipment equipment
£m £m
Cost
At beginning of year 34 07
Additions 17 3.2
Disposals - (0.5)
At end of year 5.1 34
Accumulated depreciation
At beginning of year 03 0.5
Depreciation charge for year 0.8 0.2
Disposals - (0.4}
At end of year 11 0.3
Net book value at 30 June 40 34
10 Intangible assets - goodwill
Group
2009 2008
£m £m
Cost
At beginning of year 41 41
Additions 26 -
At end of year 6.7 4.1
Net book value 6.7 41

Animpairment review of goodwill was undertaken at 31 December 2008, in recognition of the extent of market turmoi since
30 June 2008. In addition the annual impaimment review was undertaken at 30 June 2009. No impaimment was deemed necessary
on gither occasion.

The recoverable amounts of the business are determined based upon future forecast profitability and cash flow projections.
The key assumptions on which management has based their projections are the expected fund flows and growth of AuM,
which determine management and performance fee income.

The business of the Group is managed as a single unit, with asset allocations, research and other such operaticnal practices
reflecting the commeonality of approach across all fund themes. Therefore, no further split into smaller cash-generating units
is possible, and the impairment review is conducted for the Group as a whole.

The goodwil batance within the Compary at the beginning and end of the year is £4.1 million and relates to the acquisition of the
business from ANZ in 1999. Goodwil arising in the Group during the year relates to the acquisition of Dolomite on 3 November
2008. For further details on this acquisition please refer to note 22.

There has been no gross impairment of goodwill to date either within the Company or the Group.




11 Deferred acquisition costs
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Group

2009 2008

£m £m

Cost
At beginning of year 14.6 14.6
At end of year 14,6 14.5
Accumulated charge
At beginning of year 1.2 -
Charge for the year 21 1.2
At end of year 33 1.2
Carrying value at end of year 1.3 13.4

The deferred acquisition costs shown above ara in respect of the launch of AGOL, the Group's listed permanent capital vehicle,

during December 2007, and are being charged to the Group's income statemnent over seven years.

12 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
Asat As at As at As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2009 2008
Current £m em £m £m
Tracdle debtors 320 333 0.9 08
Prepayments and accrued income 0.8 07 0.7 07
Loans to subsidiaries - - 35.9 151
Other receivables 0.3 0.7 0.3 6.6
331 347 37.8 23.2
13 Deferred taxation
Defarred tax assets and liabilities recogrised by the Group and Company are attributabls to the following:
Group
Other temporary Shars-basad
ditferances payments Total
£m £m Em
At 30 June 2008
{Assets) - {(13.8) (13.8)
Liabilities 3.8 - 38
Net 3.8 (13.8) (10.0)
At 30 June 2009
(Assets) - (14.0) (14.0)
Liabilities 15 - 15
Net 15 (14.0) (12.5)
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13 Deferred taxation (continued)

Company
Gther temporary Shary-based
[tferonces payments Total
£m £m £m
At 30 June 2008
{Assets) - {13.8) (13.8)
Net - (13.8) (13.8)
A1 30 June 2009
{Assets) - (14.0) (14.0)
Liabilities 0.2 - 0.2
Net 0.2 (14.0) (13.8)
Movement in tempoarary differences between the balance shest dates has been reflected in equity or the income statement
as follows:
Group
Other temporary Share-bassd
differences payments Total
£m £m £m
At 1 July 2007 (0.3) (14.1) {(14.4)
Charged/{credited) to the Consolidated income statement (see note 5) 41 (2.4 1.7
Charge taken to equity - 2.7 2.7
At 30 June 2008 3.8 {(13.8) (10.0}
Credited to the Consolidated income statement (see note 5) (3.3) Q1) (3.4)
Charge/{credit) taken to equity 1.0 {0.1) 0.9
At 30 June 2009 15 (14.0) {(12.5)
Gompany
Qther temporary Share-based
ditferences paymants Total
£m £m £m
At1 July 2007 (0.3) (14.1) (14.4)
Charged/(credited} to the income statement 0.3 (2.4 (2.1)
Charge taken to equity - 27 2.7
At 30 June 2008 - (13.8) {(13.8)
Charged/{credited) to the income statement 0.2 {04) 01
Cradit taken to equity - (0.1) (0.1)
At 30 June 2009 0.2 (14.0) {13.8)
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14 Non-current assets and non-current liabilities held-for-sale

Where Group companies inject seed capital into funds operated and controlled by the Group, then the fund is classified as being
held-for-sale. Typically, if the fund remains under the control of the Group for more than one year from the original investment date
it will cease to be classified as held-for-sale, and will be consolidated line by fine. In determining whether to execute the reclassification,
the Group will have regard to the proximity of loss of control, and the extent to which consolidation of the fund on a line-by-liine
basis would be material to the presentation of the Group's financial statements.

2009 2008

im £m

Non-current assets held-for-sale 34.8 16.4
Non-current liabilities held-for-sale (7.4) (0.1)
Seed capital classified as being held-for-sale 274 16.3

The Group's maximum exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, forelgn exchange and price risk in respect of these assets and
liabilities is represented by their carrying value.
15 Fair value of financial instruments

There is no material difference between the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and their
fair values.

The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts and derivative financial instruments are determined by reference to published
price quotations. :
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16 Financial instrument risk management

Group

The Group is subject to business and strategy, investment, operational and treasury risk throughout its business as discussed in
the Business review. Specific areas of financial instrument risk include credit, iquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange and price risk.
The effectiveness of the Group's risk management process is, therefore, critical to its soundness and profitability and considerable
resources are dedicated to this area.

Risk management is the direct responsibiiity of the Group's senior management. The Ashmore Group Risk Management and
Control department and the Group’s Risk and Compliance Committee (RCC) are responsible for monitoring the overall risk
environment. The Group has established a control environment that ensures risks are reviewed regularty and that all risk controls
operating throughout the Group are in accordance with regulatory requirements. In addition as a regutated business the Group
is respansible for maintaining appropriate capital and performing regular calculations of capital requirements, including the
development of an intemal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP), based upon the Financial Services Authority’s
methodologles under the Capital Requirements Directive. Piltar il disclosures in connection with the ICAAP can be found

on our website at www.ashmoregroup.com,

Credit risk
The Group has exposure to credit risk from its normal activities where the risk is that a counterparty wil be unable to pay in ful
amounts when due. The Group's maximum exposure to credit rigk is represented by the camying value of its financial assets.

Financial assets subject to credit risk at are as follows:

2009 2008

Notes £m tm

Cash and cash equivalents 288.4 279.2
Available-for-sale financial assets 45 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.8 1.2
Non-current assets held-for-sale 14 348 164
Total excluding trade and other receivables 328.8 296.8
Trade and other raceivables 12 331 347
Total trade and other receivables 331 347
Total 361.9 3315

Managsment has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Trade and other receivables at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost principally comprise fee debtors, which are all less than 80 days old.

Fee debtors arise principally within the Group's investment management business and amounts are monitored regularly.
Historically, default levels have been insignificant, and, unless a client has withdrawn funds, there is an ongoing relationship
between the Group and the client. There is no significant concentration of credit risk in respect of fees owing from clients.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Such assets comprise cash and cash equivalents, and debt and equity instruments in seeded funds.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are liquid short-term deposits with banks which have credit ratings ranging from
A to A+ as at 30 June 2009 {2008: AA- to Al+).

Financial assets and liabilities held at fair value
Such assets comprise derivative financial instruments with positive and negative fair values.
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16 Financial instrument risk management (continued)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group cannot meet its obligations as they fall due ar can only do so at a cost. The liguidity policy
is to ensure that the Group has sufficient access to funds to cover all forecast committed requirements for the next 12 months.

The table below analyses the Group's financial assets and liabiliies. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows and are all due within one year, except for commitments which are greater than one year.

2009 2008
Notas £m tm
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 12 331 347
Available-for-sale financial assets 48 -
Derivative financial instruments 0.8 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 2884 279.2
Non-current assets held-for-sale 14 348 16.4
Total financial assets 3619 3315
2009 2008
€m £m
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 5.0 07
Trade and cther payables 20 51.0 63.7
Non-current liabilities held-for-sale 14 74 01
Total financial liabilities 63.4 64.5
2009 2008
£m £m
Commitments
Operating lease commitments: 21
Within one year 1.9 1.2
Over one year but not more than five years 5.7 45
Over five years 6.0 8.0
Total 13.6 17
interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes

in market interest rates.

The principal interest rate risk is the risk that the Group will sustain a reduction In interest revenue through adverse movements

in interest rates. This relates to bank deposits held in the ordinary course of business.

At 30 June 2009, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been £2.3 million higher/lower (2008: £1.8 million higher/lower), mainly as a resutt of higher/lower interest

on average cash balances.
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16 Financial instrument risk management (continued)

The assumption that the fair values of assets and liabilities wil not be affected by a change ininterest rates was used in the model
to calculate the effect on post-tax profits.

Effective interest rates applicable to financial instruments are as follows:

Year ended Year endod
30 June 30 Juna
2009 2008
% %
Deposits with banks 291 5.84
Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Items repricing within one year or less:
Deposits with banks 288.4 279.2
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes

in foreign exchange rates.

The Group's financial assets and liabilties are denominated in the following currencies:

Year ended 30 June 2009:
Stariing US Doltar Brazitlan Real Other Total
Notes £m £m £m fm £m
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 12 76 24.8 0.6 01 331
Available-for-sale financial assets 0.2 - - 4.6 4.8
Derivative financial instruments - 0.8 - - 0.8
Cash and cash equivalents 2720 16.0 - 0.4 288.4
Non-current assets held-for-sale 14 - 4.6 30.2 - 34.8
Total financial assets 279.8 46.2 308 51 361.9
Sterling US Dellar Braziian Real Gther Total
Notes Em £m £m £€m £m
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 5.0 - - 5.0
Trade and other payables 20 29.9 21.0 01 - 51.0
Non-current liabllities held-for-sale 14 - 0.7 6.7 - 7.4
Total financial liabilities 29.9 26.7 6.8 - 63.4
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16 Financial instrument risk management (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2008:
Sterling U5 Dallar Brazilian Real Other Total
Notes £m £m £Em £m €m
Financial assets
Trade and ather receivables 2 3.0 31.6 041 - 347
Derivative financial instruments - 1.2 - - 1.2
Cash and cash equivalents 268.0 10.8 - 0.3 279.2
Non-current assets held-for-sale 14 — - 16.4 — 16.4
Total financial assets 2710 437 16.5 0.3 3315
Sterling US Dollar Brazllian Real Other Total
Notes £m £m £Em £m £m
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 0.7 - - 07
Trade and other payables 20 39.8 23.8 - - 63.7
Non-current liabllities held-for-sale 14 - - 01 - 0.1
Total financial liabilities 398 246 01 - 64.5

The Group's revenue is almost entirely denominated in US Doltars, while the Group's cost base is largely Sterling-based.
Consequently, the Group has an exposure to movements in the US$/€ exchange rate.

The Group’s policy is to hedge this net foreign exchange éxposure by using a combination of forward foreign exchange contracts
and options for up to two years forward. The Group also sells US Dollars at spot rates when oppoertunities arise.

At 30 June 2009, if the US Dollar had strengthenedAveakened by 10 cents against Sterling with all other variables held constant,
profit before tax for the year would have increased/decreased by £15.1 milion/£10.8 million respectively (2008: £6.9 million/
£6.2 million).

The Group also holds a small number of seed capital investments, as shown on the balance sheet, which are denominated in
Braziian Real or US Dollars. Any such seed investments give rise to foreign exchange risk. At 30 June 2009, if the Brazilian Real
and US Dollar had, in aggregate, strengthened/weakened by 1 per cent against Sterling with all other variables held constant,

net assets and net revenue for the year would have increased/decreased by £0.3 milion/€0.3 million (2008: £0.1 milion/£0.2 million).

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of market changes.

The Group's direct exposure to price risk is in respect of the seed capital investments it holds on its balance sheet. These can
be either debt or equity instruments, where the Group’s exposure is restricted to the carrying value of the assets or fiabilities.

At 30 June 2009, a 5 per cent movernent in the fair value of these investments would have had a £2.0 milion (2008: £0.8 million)
impact on net assets/net revenue.

There is also indirect price risk in connection with the Group's AuM and its associated management and performance fees. These
are diversified across a range of investment themes and not correlated to any single market indices in emerging markets. Based
on the year-end asssts under management of U$$24.9 billion, and a sensible medium-term average net management fearate

of 1 per cent, a 5 per cent movement in assets under management would have a US$12.5 million impact in management fee
revenues. However, the profitability impact is likely to be less than this, as cost mitigation actions would apply, including the
reduction in the variable compensation paid to employees. Performance fee revenues could be reduced to nil in severs market
conditions, though as with management fees there would also be an associated positive impact on costs.
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16 Financial instrument risk management (continued)

Hedpging activities

Included within the realised and unrealised hedging losses of £42.4 million recognised at 30 June 2008 are:

+ a£4.5 milion loss in respect of the unrealised mark-to-market loss on open forward foreign exchange contracts covering
net management fee income for the financial year ending 30 June 2010;

« a£0.4 million gain in respect of foreign exchange opticns covering net management fee income for the financial year ending
30 June 2011; and

* 3 £38.3 million loss in respect of crystaliised forward foreign exchange contracts.

Financial year ending 30 June 2010 forward foreign exchange contracts

These were not designated as hedges at inception, and as such have been valued at the year-end rate of GBP1:1 .5458USD with
the mark-to-market impact atready having been recognised in the Consolidated income statement. This loss wilt be offset by either
gains on management fees as they crystallise, or hedge contracts as they mature, during the next financial year. The maturity
profile and the associated loss recognised at 30 June 2009 is shown below:

Maturity dats
First half 2009110 Second hatf 200910
Hedge contracts maturing (US$m) 60.0 60.0
Average contract rate (GBP:USD) 1.79 1.72
Exchange rate at 30 June 2009 (GBP:USD) 1.6458 1.6458
Hedge {loss) recognised at 30 June 2009 (£m) (3.0) (1.5)

Financial year ending 30 June 2011 foreign exchange options .
The options have been assessed as effective cash flow hedges at 30 June 2009. A net unrealised gain arising on these contracts
of £:0.4 milion {2008: nil) has been recognised in the Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 June 2009, being

the movement in the time value of the options between the date that they were entered into and the year end. The intrinsic value
of the options will be recognised directly in equity as long as the hedges are assessed as being highly effective, and recognised
in the income statement as the corresponding hedged cash flows crystallise.

Notional 2009 Notional 2008
amount Assets Liabllities amaunt Assets Liabilities
£m £m £m tm £m £m
Cash flow hedges
Forward exchange options 36.5 0.4 - - - -

Capital management

Equity as referred to in the Group's balance sheet is the capital for the business. There are no other assets managed which are
considered capital of the Group. As referred to above, the Group monitors its regulatory capital in order to meet the financial
resources requirement of the Financial Services Authority.

Company
The risk management processes of the Company are aligned with those of the Group as a whole. The Company’s specific risk
exposures are explained below.

Credit risk
The Company has exposure to credit risk from its normal activities where the risk is that a counterparty will be unable to pay in full
amounts when due. The Company's maximurm exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying value of its financial assets.
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16 Financial instrument risk management (continued)

Financial assets subject to credit risk are as follows:

2009 2008

Nate £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents 207.0 174.6
Total excluding trade and other receivables 207.0 174.6
Trade and other receivables 12 378 23.2
Total trade and other receivables 37.8 23.2
Total 244.8 197.8

The Company's cash and cash equivalents are liquid short-term deposits with banks which have credit ratings ranging from
Ato A+ as at 30 June 2009 (2008: AA- to Al+).

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company cannot mest its obligations as they fall due or can only do so at a cost. The liquidity policy
is to ensure that the Company has sufficient access to funds to cover all forecast cormmitted requirements for the next 12 months.

The table below analyses the Company's financial assets and liabilities. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows and are all due within one year, except for commitments which are greater than one year.

2009 2008
Notes £m £m
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables 12 37.8 232
Cash and cash equivalents 207.0 174.6
Total financial assets 244.8 197.8
2009 2008
£m £m
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 323 377
Total financial liabilities 323 37.7
2009 2008
£m £m
Gommitments
Operating lease commitments: 21
Within one year 1.1 1.1
Over one year but not more than five years 43 43
Over five years 6.0 6.0
Total 1.4 1.4
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16 Financial instrument risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The principal interest rate risk is the risk that the Company will sustain a reduction in interest reveriue through adverse movements
in interest rates. This refates to bank deposits held in the ordinary course of business.

At 30 June 2009, if interest rates had been 200 basis points higher/lower with ali other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been £2.8 million higher/lower (2008: £2.2 million higher/lower}, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
on cash balances.

The assumption that the fair values of assets and liabilities will not be affected by a change in interest rates was used in the model
to calculate the effect on post-tax profits.

Effective interest rates applicable to financial instruments are as follows:

Year ended Year snded
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
% %
Deposits with banks 3.25 6.11
Year ended Yoar ended
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£€m £m
Items repricing within one year or less:
Deposits with banks 2070 174.6

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign excharige risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. Other than intercompany balances in relation to seed capital investments, the Company has no significant

exposure to foreign exchange risk.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of market changes.

The Company has no exposure in this area.
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17 Share capital

Group and Company
(a) Share capital authorised
Asat Asat As at Asg at
30 .hme 30 hume 30 June 30.June
2009 2009 2008 2008
Numbar Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value £'000 of sharas value £'000
Ordinary shares of 0.01p each 900,000,000 a0 900,000,000 80
(b) Share capital issued
Allotted, called-up and fully paid equity shares:
As at Asat Ag at Asat
30 June 30 June 30 Juns 30 June
2009 2009 2008 2008
Numbar Neminal Numbar Nominal
of shares value £'000 of shares valua £'000
Ordinary shares of 0.01p gach 708,925,000 70 708,925,000 70

All the above ordinary shares represent equity of the Company and rank pari passu in respect of participation and voting rights.

At 30 June 2009 there were 32,125,321 (2008: 32,670,946) options in issue with contingent rights to the allotment of ordinary
shares of 0.01 pence in the Company. There are also share awards issued under the Omnibus Plan totaling 14,582,041 shares
{2008: 5,812,954) that have release dates ranging from November 2011 to February 2014, Further detalls are provided in note 7.

18 Own shares

The Ashmore 2004 Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) was established to encourage and facilitate the acquisition and holding of shares
in the Company by the emplayess of the Company with a view to facilitating the recruitment and motivation of the employees of
the Company. As at the period end, the EBT owned 34,293,185 (2008: 34,012,500) ordinary shares of G.01 pence with a nominal
value of £3,429.32 (2008: £3,401.25) and shareholders’ funds are reduced by £6.2 million (2008: £5.4 milion) in this respect.

It is the intention of the Directors to make these shares available to employees by way of sale through the share-based
compensation plans.
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19 Treasury shares

In kine with authorities granted at the AGM in October 2008 the Company purchased shares which are held in treasury. An analysis
of treasury shares is as follows:

Treasury shares held by Ashmore Group plc

2008 2008
Cost of treasury shares: £m tm
Ashmore Group plc ordinary shares 6.9 -
Number Number
Ashmore Group plc ordinary shares 5,368,331 -
Reconciliation of treasury shares Numbar Number
At beginning of year - -
Purchass of own shares 5,368,331 -
At end of year 5,368,331 -
Market valus of treasury shares: tm £m
Ashmore Group plic 10.2 -
20 Trade and other payables
Group Company
Asat As at Asat As at
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2009 2008
€m £m £m £m
Current
Accruals and deferred income 510 63.7 32.3 377
51.0 637 323 377
21 Leases

Operating leases
The Group has entered into certain property leases. The leases have no escalation clauses or renewal or purchase options and no
restrictions imposed cn them.

The obligations under these non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

Group
Asat As at
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £em
Within one year 1.9 1.2
Over one year but not more than five years 57 4.5
Over five years 6.0 6.0
Total 13.6 1.7
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21 Leases {continued)

Company
Asat Asat
30 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £m
Within one year 11 14
Cver one year but not more than five years 4.3 43
Over five years 6.0 6.0
Total 1.4 14

22 Acquisitions

On 3 Novernber 2008, the Group acquired a 75 per cent stake in Dolomite Capital Management (“Dolomite”). Dolomite is an
emerging markets focused fund-of-funds manager and independent advisor on emerging market investments based in New York
and had approximately LUSS$Q.1 billion of assets under management at 30 June 2009. In the eight months to 30 June 2009 the
subsidiary contributed net revenue of £0.4 million. lts profit before tax contribution for the same period was negligible. Had the
acquisition occurred on 1 July 2008, the impact on the Group's net revenue for the full period would have been £0.6 million
accretive, with no impact on the profit before tax.

In addition to the consideration at the time of acquisition, set out below, further provisions existed within the sharsholders’ agreement
for the Group to be able to acquire the remaining equity of Dolomite Capital Limited, using call and put options. The value of both
types of options was capped and was based on the performance of the undertying business.

The Group restructured its US operations in June 2009, to enable us to consolidate the team with our existing staff and grow
our overall Ashmore marketing and distribution presence in the United States. As part of this restructure Dolomite became
a wholly-owried subsidiary, for no additional consideration, resulting in the cancellation of the put and call options.

Effect of acquisition

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities.

£m
Book value of assets and liabilities acquired at the transaction date;
Trade and other receivables 02
Cash and cash equivalents 0.1
Trade and other payables {0.1)
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 0.2
Goodwill arising In the Group on acquisition 26
Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 2.8
Prepaid compensation 0.9
Net cash outflow for the Group 3.7
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23 Subsidiaries

Gampany
Investment in subsidiaries
Asat As at
A0 June 30 June
2009 2008
£m £'m
Cost 47 1.0
Ashmore Group plc is the ultimate parent Company of the Group.
The directly held subsidiary of the parent Company is as follows: . .
incomorstont asot
{ormation and 30 June
principal place 2009
of operation % ownad
Ashmore Investments (UK) Limited Engtand 100.00
The principal indirectly held subsidiaries are as follows:
Country of
incorporation/ As at
formation and 30 June
principal place 2009
of operation % owned
Ashmore Investment Management Limited England 100.00
Ashmore Management Company Limited Guemsey 100.00
Ashmare Investment Management (Singapore) Pte. Lid. Singapore 100.00
Ashmore Global Special Situations Fund 3 (GP) Limited Gusrnsey 100.00
Ashmore Global Special Situations Fund 4 (GP) Limited Guemnsey 100.00
Ashmore Global Special Situations Fund 5 (GP) Limited Guemsey 100.00
Ashmore Investments (Turkey) NV Netherlands 96.80
Ashmore Investments (Brasil) Limited Guemnsey 87.50
Ashmore Investments (India} Limited Mauritius 90.00
Ashmore Investments (Colombia) SL Spain 100.00
Aldwych Administration Services Limited England 100.00
Ashmore (FOF) Limited England 100.00
Ashmore (FOF) Corporation USA 100.00
Ashmore Russian Opportunities Fund 1 {GP) Limited Guemsey 100.00
Ashrore Private Equity Turkey Management Limited Guemsey 70.00
AA Development Capital Investment Managers (Mauritiug) LLC Mauritius 55.00

All shares held are ordinary.




24 Related party transactions

Transactions with key management personnel = Group and Company
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Related party transactions are in respect of relationships with key management personnel. The compensation of key management

personnel was as follows:

Year ended

Year ended

30 June 30 June

2009 2008

£m £m

Short-term employee benefits 27 11.8
Share-based payment benefits 04 01
Total 31 1.9

The figures in the above table include a total of £0.0 million (2008: £0.7 million) waived by key management personnel with an

equivalent amount to be donated to charity.

Share-based payment benefits represents the fair value charge to the income statement of share awards.

Transactions with subsidiaries - Company

Details of transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, are shown below:

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2009 2008

£m £m

Management fees received 56.5 621
Net dividends received 1155 78.0
Asat Asal

30 June 30.June

2009 2008

£m £tm

Amounts due from subsidiaries 35.9 209
Amounts due to subsidiaries 7.9 04

Transactions with post-employment benefit plans - Group and Company

The Group and Company operate and participate in a post-employment benefit plan. The Group and Company contributed
the following amounts to a defined contribution scheme during the year and no amounts were outstanding at 30 June 2009

and 30 June 2008.

Employer contributions to a defined contribution scheme

2009
£m

0.6

£m

0.3

The Ashmore Foundation

The Ashmore Foundation is a related party to the Group. The Foundation was set up to provide financial grants to worthwhile
causes within the emerging markets geographies in which Ashmore operates with a view to putting something back into the
countries and communities in which the Group invests and which contribute to Ashmore’s income and profitability. There

were no related party transactions during the year.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

25 Directors’ remuneration

Disclosures of Directors’ remuneration as required by the Companies Act 2006 are as follows:

Your ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

009 2008

£m £m

Aggregate emoluments 0.8 5.5
0.8 5.5

In the year ended 30 June 2009 the figures include £0.0 milion (2008: £0.7 million) waived by Directors with an equivalent amount
to be donated to charity.

There are retirement benefits accruing to two Directors under a defined contribution scheme (2008: two).

Directors’ emoluments
This information is included in the Remuneration report on page 44.

26 Post-balance sheet events

There are no post-balance sheet events for the year ended 30 June 2009.

27 Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements are continually evaluated and are based upon

management’s assessment of current and future events. The principal estimates and judgements that have a significant effect

on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities are discussed below:

+ The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, The recoverable amount is determined based upcn value-in-use calculations
prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and estimates.

« The Group assesses the recognition of performance tees to determine whether receipt of the fess is considered probable and
the amount reliable. The assessment Is made using management's judgement of the circumstances relevant to each
performance fee entitement.

« The calculation of fair vatue in respect of options requires a number of estimates to derive the fair value, further details of which
are provided In note 7 above.
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Five-year summary
{FRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Management fees 4.2 80.8 130.2 186.7 186.8
Performance fees 23.2 54.2 20.4 44.7 525
Other revenue 23 24 10.3 1041 6.4
Total revenue 66.7 1371 160.9 241.5 245.7
Less: Distribution costs (1.3) (2.3) (3.8) 4.7) (3.6)
Foreign exchange 0.5 0.8 2.7 3.2 {38.6)
Net revenue 65.9 135.6 i598.8 2400 2035
Personnel expenses (3.4) {4.0) 5.2) (7.4) {11.5)
Variable compensation (13.9) (30.4} (27.4) (40.3) {24.5)
Other operating expenses (3.8) (6.5} (5.5} {11.1) {16.9)
Total operating expenses {21.1) (40.9) (38.1) (58.8) (52.9)
Operating profit 448 Q47 121.7 181.2 150.6
Interest income 3.6 6.4 97 15.0 9.2
Gain on sale - 2.8 - - -
Profit before tax 48.4 103.9 1314 196.2 159.8
Tax expense {16.0} (32.3) (39.9) (55.2) (44.3)
Profit for the year 324 71.6 g1.5 141.0 115.5
EPS (basic) 4.9p 10.8p 13.7p 21.0p 1714p
Other operating data (unaudited)
AuUM at pericd end (US$bn) 1" 2041 316 375 24.9
AuUM at period end (Ebn) 6.1 10.8 15.7 18.8 15.1
Average AuM (£bn) 4.5 94 136 17.7 12.3
Average £:US$ exchange rate for the year 1.86 1.78 1.95 2.01 1.60
Period end £:US$ exchange rate for the year  1.82 1.84 2.01 1,99 1.65




ASHMORE GROUF PLC / AR €9 / RNANCIAL STATEMENTS / [NEQRMATION FOR SHAREHOLOERS

Information for shareholders

Ashmore Group plc
Registered in England and Wales.
Company No. 3675683

Registered office

61 Aldwych

London WC2B 4AE

Tel: +44(0) 20 3077 6000
Fax: +44 (0) 20 3077 6001

Principal UK trading subsidiary
Ashmore Investment Management
Lirnited.

Registered in England and Wales.
Company No. 3344281.

Business address and registered
office as above,

Further information on Ashmore Group
plc can be found on the Company's
website: www.ashimoregroup.com.

Financial calendar
Announcement of results for year
ended 30 June 2009

15 September 2009

First quarter AuM statement
15 October 2009

Annual General Meeting
29 0ctober 2009

Ex-dividend date
4 November 2009

Record date
6 Novemnber 2009

Final dividend payment date
4 December 2009

Second quarter AuM staterment
January 2010

Announcement of unaudited Interim
Resuits for the six months ended

31 December 2009

February 2010

Announcement of results for the year
ended 30 June 2010
September 2010

Registrar

Equiniti Registrars
Aspect House
Spencer Road
West Sussex
BNS9 6DA

UK shareholder helpline: 0871 384 2030

Intemational shareholder helpline:
+44 121 415 7047

Further information about the
Registrar is available on its website
www.egquiniti.com.

Up-to-date information about current
holdings on the register is also available
at www.shareview.co.uk.

Shareholders will need their reference
number {account number} and posicode
to view information on their own holding.

Share price information

Share prica information can be found
at www.ashmoregroup.com or through
your broker.

Share dealing

Shares may be sold through a
stockbroker or share dealing service.
There are a variety of services available.
Equiniti Registrars offer a secure,

free and easy-to-use intemest-based
share dealing service known as
Shareview dealing.

You can log on at www.shareview.co.uk/
to access this service, or contact the
helpline on 0845 603 7037 to deal

by telephone.

You may also use the Shareview

service to access and manage your
share investments and view balance
movements, indicative share prices,
information on recent dividends, portfolio
valuation and general information for
sharaholders. Shareholders must register
at www.shareview.co.uk, entering the
shareholder reference on the share
certificate and other personal details,

Having selected a personal PIN, a user
ID will be issued by the Registrar.

Electronic copies of the 2009 Annual
Report and financial statements and
other publications

Copies of the 2009 Annual Report
and financial statements, the notice

of Annual General Meeting, other
corporate publications, press releases
and announcements are avallable

on the Company’s website at
www.ashmoregroup.com.

Sharegift

Shareholders with only a small number
of shares whose value makes them
uneconomic to sell may wish to consider
donating to charity through Sharegift,
anindependent charity share donation
scheme.

For further information, please

contact either the Registrar or Sharegift:
on telephone +44 (0) 20 7828 1151, or
see the website at www.sharegift.org.

Frequent shareholder enquiries

Enquiries and netifications conceming
dividends, share certificates or transfers
and address changes should be

sent to the Registrar; the Company’s
governance reports, corporate
govemnance guidelines and the terms

of reference of the Board committees
can be found on the Company’s
website at www.ashmoregroup.com.




Notifying the Company of a change
of address

You should notify Equiniti Registrars
in writing.

it you hold shares in joint names, the
notification to change address must be
signed by the first-named shareholder.

You may choose to do this onlins,

by logging on to www.shareview.co.uk.
You will need your shareholder reference
number to access this service — this

can be found on your share certificate
or from a dividend counterfoil.

You will be asked to select your awn
PIN and a user ID will be posted to you.

Notifying the Company of a change

of name

You should notify Equiniti Registrars in
writing of your new name and previous
name. You should attach a copy of your
marriage certificate or your change of
narme deed, together with your share
certificates and any un-cashed dividend
cheques in your old name, so that the
Registrar can reissue them.

Dividend payments directly into bank

or building seciety accounts

We recommend that all dividend
payments are made directly into a bank

or buiding society account. Dividends are

paid via BACS, providing tighter security
and access to funds more quickly. To
apply for a dividend mandate form,
contact the Registrar, or you can find ong
by logging on to www.shareview.co.uk
{under Frequently Asked Questions) or
by calling the helpline on 0871 384 2030,

Transterring Ashmore Group plc shares
Transferring some or all of your shares
to someone else (for example your
partner or a member of your family)
requires completion of a share transter
form, which is available from Equiniti
Registrars. The form should be fully
completed and retumed with your share
certificate representing at least the
number of shares being transterred.
The Registrar will then process the
transfer and issue a baflance share
certificate to you if applicable. The
Registrar will be able to help you

with any guastions you may have.

Lost share certificate(s)

Sharsholders who lose their share
certificate(s) or have their certificate(s}
stolen should inform Equiniti Registrars
immediately by calling the shareholder
helpline on 0871 384 2030.

Disability helpline
For shareholders with hearing difficulties

a special text phone number is available:

0871 384 2255,
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